
 

AGENDA 
 

Committee 
 
 

POLICY REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

Date and Time  
of Meeting 
 
 

THURSDAY, 14 MAY 2015, 4.30 PM 
 

Venue  
 
 

COMMITTEE ROOM 4 - COUNTY HALL 
 

Membership 
 
 

Councillor Howells (Chair) 
Councillors Cowan, Goodway, Hunt, Lloyd, Love, McGarry, Murphy and 
Walker 
 
 

1   Apologies for Absence   
 
To receive apologies for absence. 
 

2   Declarations of Interest   
 
To be made at the start of the agenda item in question, in accordance with the 
Members’ Code of Conduct. 
 

3   Outline of Call-In Process by County Clerk & Monitoring Officer   
 

4   Glamorgan County Cricket Club Loan Write-off and Restructuring.  
Consideration of Called-in Cabinet Decision - CAB/14/15  (Pages 1 - 82) 
 
NOTE: 
Appendix 1 & 2 of Appendix B of this item contains exempt information and 
is not for publication by virtue of paragraphs 14 and 21 of Part(s) 4 and 5 of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government  Act 1972 (Descriptions of Exempt 
Information: Wales) 
 
(a) Councillor Russell Goodway, as the Member who 

called in this decision, will be invited to make a 
statement. 
 

4.45 pm 

(b) Councillor Graham Hinchey, Cabinet Member, 
Corporate Services & Performance, may wish to make 
a statement. 
 

 

(c) Councillor Phil Bale, Leader, may wish to make a 
statement. 
 

 



 

 Also in attendance for Cardiff Council will be Christine 
Salter (Corporate Director, Resources), Marcia Sinfield 
(Operational Manager, Technical Accountancy), Geoff 
Shimell (Legal Manager, Property & Development), 
Anil Hirani (Operational Account Manger, Capital), and 
Steve Morris (Parks & Sport Development Manger) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(d) Members’ question & answer session 
 

 

(e) Exclusion of the Public 
 
TO RESOLVE – that the public be excluded from 
the meeting for the following items of business in 
accordance with paragraphs 14 and 21 of Part(s) 4 
and 5 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government 
Act 1975 
 

Approx 
5.20 pm 

(f) Representatives of Cardiff Council will be available to 
answer Members’ questions. 
 

 

(g) Representatives of Deloitte, advisers to the Council, 
will be available to answer Members’ questions. 
 

 

(h) Representatives of Glamorgan County Cricket Club will 
be available to answer Members’ questions. 
 

 

(i) Representatives of Allied Irish Bank will be available to 
answer Members’ questions. 
 

 

 The following items of business will take place in 
open session. 
 

Approx 
6.25 pm 

(j) The Chair may invite further evidence from some or all 
of the above witnesses. 
 

 

(k) Members’ question & answer session. 
 

 

(l) Councillor Russell Goodway will be invited to sum up. 
 

 

(m) Councillor Graham Hinchey, Cabinet Member, 
Corporate Services & Performance, may wish to 
respond. 
 

 

(n) Final Questions from Members of the Committee. 
 

 

   
 
 
 

5   Discussion and determination to refer back or not   
 



 

 
 
 Date of next meeting - Tuesday, 2 June 2015 

 
 

Marie Rosenthal 
County Clerk & Monitoring Officer 
Date:  8 May 2015 
Contact:  Graham Porter, 029 2087 2434, G.Porter@cardiff.gov.uk 
  



This page is intentionally left blank



CITY & COUNTY OF CARDIFF COUNCIL

DINAS A SIR CAERDYDD

POLICY REVIEW & PERFORMANCE 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 14 May 2015

GLAMORGAN COUNTY CRICKET CLUB LOAN WRITE- OFF AND 
RESTRUCTURING - CONSIDERATION OF CALLED-IN CABINET DECISION
CAB/14/105

Please note that Appendix 1 and 2 of Appendix B attached to this report is not 
for publication as it contains exempt information of the description contained 
in paragraphs 14 and 21 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Background

 

1. The Council’s Constitution makes provision for a Call-In Procedure which 

provides that any non-Cabinet Member may call-in a decision of which notice has 

been given, by giving notice in writing to the Operational Manager of Scrutiny 

Services within the Call-In Period (within 7 clear working days after publication of 

the decision). The Operational Manager shall then notify the Cabinet Business 

Office and call a meeting of the relevant Scrutiny Committee, where possible 

after consultation with the Chairperson of the Committee, and in any case within 

five clear working days of the decision to call-in.

2. Cabinet Decisions, for purposes of the Call-In Procedure, are those made by the

Cabinet, a Committee of the Cabinet, the Leader, a Cabinet Member, the Chief 

Executive or a Corporate Director (or other post holder/s within the same tier of 

management or responsibility).

3. On 19 March 2015 the Cabinet received a report requesting a decision ‘to 

consider a proposal from Glamorgan County Cricket Club for a write off and 

restructuring of sums due to the Council in respect of loans provided to improve 

Agenda Item 4

Page 1



the Club’s ground infrastructure and to meet standards required for the staging of 

test matches.’

4. Cabinet Decision CAB/14/105, made on 19 March 2015 and published on the 

same date with a proposed implementation date of 23 March 2015, resolved:

In line with the other main creditors, write-off circa 70% of the value of sums 

outstanding on loans made to Glamorgan County Cricket Club. 

Agree the heads of terms and revised terms for repayment of amounts 

outstanding, whilst acknowledging that there can be no absolute guarantee 

that income generated by the Club will enable it to repay the proposed 

restructured loan. 

Delegate authority to the Corporate Director Resources to complete revised 

contractual terms with the club in consultation with the County Solicitor and 

the Cabinet Member for Corporate Services and Performance.

5. The reasons given for taking this decision were:

The implications of not accepting the proposal are the likely insolvency of 

the Club or a change in legal status which could have significant cost 

implications for the Club, reputational impact, loss of test or other major 

match status including impact on existing match awards. 

Independent financial advice indicates the existing level of debt of the Club 

is un-serviceable, and even with a circa 70% write down significant 

financial and operating risks remain. 

The first creditor has agreed to the terms of the restructuring, subject to the 

Council also doing so, which gives assurance the Council is acting in 

accordance with the Market Investor Principle. 

The proposal in partnership with Allied Irish Bank is a generous one, as in 

similar situations lower ranking creditors would normally be required to 

write-off their outstanding amounts in full. The Council will retain 

opportunities to recoup some of the loan amount in future years in 

accordance with revised loan agreements or should there be a reversal in 

the Club’s financial position. The Council also continues to discuss 

Page 2



opportunities to access other benefits from the Club, for example the use of 

rooms at the stadium where relevant 

Independent financial advice indicates the existing level of debt of the Club 

is un-serviceable even with a circa 70% write

5. A copy of the relevant section of the Register of Cabinet Decisions, setting out 

the decision and reasons for this decision, is attached at Appendix A.

6. Attached at Appendix B is the report to the Cabinet Business Meeting of 19

March 2015. This Appendix itself contains two appendices. Appendix 1 is a 

Draft Loan Restructuring Term Sheet, and Appendix 2 is an independent financial 

review report by Deloitte commissioned by the Council. Both appendices are

exempt from publication for the reasons stated at the top of this report.

7. A Member of the Committee has requested that the above decision be called in 

for Scrutiny Committee consideration (Appendix C). The reasons given for the 

Call In are:

a. The apparent failure to consider other options to secure the council-

taxpayers interest;

b. The apparent willingness to collaborate in the release of a bank guarantee 

and the repayment of loan capital to a lower ranking creditor to the 

apparent detriment of council-taxpayers;

c. The apparent failure to secure changes in the organisation’s management 

to secure improvements in the Club’s financial performance;

d. The on-going financial performance of the Club and its apparent inability 

to pay its debts when they fall due;

e. The apparent failure to secure appropriate benefits in kind to mitigate the 

loss to the council taxpayer;

f. The risk to the council’s reputation resulting from the decision to enter into 

the proposed agreement.

8. The Policy Review and Performance Scrutiny Committee’s terms of reference,

agreed by Full Council on 29 May 2014, include the scrutiny, monitoring and

Page 3



review of the effectiveness of the general implementation of the Council's 

policies, aims and objectives, including systems of financial control and 

administration.

9. The role of Scrutiny Committees calling in a decision is:

(i) To test the merits of the decision;

(ii) To consider the process by which the decision has been formulated;

(iii) To make recommendations (to support the decision, change aspects of the 

decision, or to invite the decision making body to reconsider);

(iv) To suggest further steps before a decision is made.

10.Members may be aware that there are additional background papers relevant to 

the Council’s decision to write down the Glamorgan Cricket Club loan, relating to 

two decisions of the previous Executive on this matter, taken in 2011 and 2006. 

These decisions are not the subject of scrutiny at this meeting, however should 

Members wish to access these papers in preparation for the meeting, this can be 

done by following the links at the end of this report.

Scope of Scrutiny

11.The Committee therefore needs to consider this call-In in accordance with the 

requirements of the Call-In Procedure. The scope of this scrutiny is limited to 

exploring the reasons for the call-in listed in paragraph 7 above.

12. It is important that Members focus their questions directly on the decision taken 

by Cabinet on 19 March 2015. Should questions be evaluated as probing 

decisions not within the remit of the call-in then the Chair will deem it necessary 

to disallow the line of inquiry.

13.Under the Call-In Procedure, the relevant Scrutiny Committee may consider the 

called-in decision itself, or decide to refer the issue to the Council for Scrutiny if 

the matter is of general significance and importance to the Council as a whole.  A 

Council meeting to consider this issue must take place within 10 clear working 

Page 4



days of such a referral, unless otherwise agreed between the Leader and the 

Chairperson of the relevant Scrutiny Committee.

14.Having considered the decision, the Scrutiny Committee may refer it back to the 

decision maker for reconsideration, setting out in writing the nature of its 

concerns. The decision maker shall then reconsider the matter before adopting a 

final decision, arranging for the decision to be changed to reflect points made by 

the Scrutiny Committee, or formally deferring the matter for further consideration. 

The relevant Scrutiny Committee or Council as appropriate will be advised of the 

outcome at its next meeting.

15. If following a Call-In, the matter is not referred back to the decision maker, the 

decision shall take effect on the date of the relevant Scrutiny Committee or 

Council meeting which considers the issue, or the expiry of the Scrutiny Period or 

the Council Scrutiny Period as appropriate, whichever is the later.

16. In order to undertake its task the Committee will have the opportunity to question 

the following witnesses:

From The City of Cardiff Council

Councillor Graham Hinchey (Cabinet Member, Corporate Services and

Performance)

Christine Salter (Corporate Director, Resources)

Marcia Sinfield (Operational Manager, Projects and Technical Accountancy)

Anil Hirani (Operational Manager, Account Manager, Capital)

Geoff Shimell, Operational Manager (Property and Management)

Steve Morris (Parks and Sport Development Manager)

Paul Meadows (Director, Deloitte)

Ben Swarbrick (Assistant Director, Deloitte)

From Glamorgan County Cricket Club:

Representatives of the club will include the Chairman and Chief Executive, and a 

representative of .Allied Irish Bank.

Page 5



Legal Implications

18.The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and 

recommend but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in this 

report are to consider and review matters there are no direct legal implications. 

However, legal implications may arise if and when the matters under review are 

implemented with or without any modifications. Any report with recommendations 

for decision that goes to Cabinet/Council will set out any legal implications arising 

from those recommendations. All decisions taken by or on behalf of the Council 

must (a) be within the legal powers of the Council; (b) comply with any procedural 

requirement imposed by law; (c) be within the powers of the body or person 

exercising powers on behalf of the Council; (d) be undertaken in accordance with 

the procedural requirements imposed by the Council e.g. Scrutiny Procedure 

Rules; (e) be fully and properly informed; (f) be properly motivated; (g) be taken 

having regard to the Council's fiduciary duty to its taxpayers; and (h) be 

reasonable and proper in all the circumstances.

Financial Implications

19.The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and 

recommend but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in this 

report are to consider and review matters there are no direct financial 

implications at this stage in relation to any of the work programme. However, 

financial implications may arise if and when the matters under review are 

implemented with or without any modifications. Any report with recommendations 

for decision that goes to Cabinet/Council will set out any financial implications 

arising from those recommendations.

RECOMMENDATION

The Committee is recommended to consider Cabinet Decision CAB/14/105

in accordance with the Call In Procedure.

Marie Rosenthal

County Clerk & Monitoring Officer

8 May 2015

Page 6



Background Papers

Executive Business Meeting:17 February 2011 SWALEC STADIUM

https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Councillors-and-

meetings/CouncilMeetings/Pages/default.aspx

Executive Business Meeting:14 November 2006 GLAMORGAN COUNTY CRICKET 

CLUB

https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Councillors-and-

meetings/CouncilMeetings/Pages/default.aspx

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



C
IT

Y
 O

F
 C

A
R

D
IF

F
  

C
O

U
N

C
IL

R
E

G
IS

T
E

R
 O

F
 C

A
B

IN
E

T
D

E
C

IS
IO

N
S

 :
  

1
0

2
0
1
4
/1

5

D
e
c
is

io
n

 
N

o
.

M
in

u
te

 N
o

D
e
c
is

io
n

R
e
a
s
o

n
s

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 
U

n
d

e
rt

a
k

e
n

D
a
te

s
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 f

o
r 

im
p

le
m

e
n

-
ta

ti
o

n
 a

ft
e
r 

d
a
te

 s
h

o
w

n

D
e
c
is

io
n

M
a
d

e
P

u
b

li
c
a
ti

o
n

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

if
  
n

o
 c

a
ll

-i
n

M
in

 N
o
 

1
2
9

M
in

s
:

1
9
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
5

M
in

 N
o
 

1
3
0

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
la

n
 2

0
1
5
-1

7

R
E

S
O

L
V

E
D

: 
th

a
t

1
.

th
e
 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 
P

la
n
 
2
0
1
5
-

2
0
1
7

b
e
 
a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 
a
s
 
s
e
t 

o
u
t 

in
 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 
1
 

to
 

th
e
 

re
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 b

y
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

o
n
 2

6
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
5
;

2
.

C
o
u
n
c
il 

b
e
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 

to
 d

e
le

g
a
te

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

to
 t

h
e
 

C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e

 
in

 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
 

th
e
 

L
e
a
d
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

to
 

m
a
k
e
 

a
n
y
 

c
o
n
s
e
q

u
e
n
ti
a
l 

a
m

e
n
d
m

e
n
ts

 
to

 
th

e
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

P
la

n
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 

b
y
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

o
n
 2

6
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
5
.

T
o
 e

n
a
b
le

 t
h
e
 d

ra
ft
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

la
n
 

2
0
1
5
-2

0
1
7
 t
o
 b

e
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

o
n
 2

6
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
5
 a

n
d
 t
o
 b

e
 

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 t

h
e
re

a
ft

e
r,

 
s
u
b
je

c
t 
to

 a
n
y
 

c
o
n
s
e
q

u
e
n
ti
a
l 

a
m

e
n
d
m

e
n
ts

.

T
h
e
s
e
 m

a
tt

e
rs

 a
re

 t
o
 b

e
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d
 b

y
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 a

re
 n

o
t,
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

, 
s
u
b
je

c
t 
to

 
c
a
ll-

in

C
A

B
/1

4
/

1
0
1

M
in

 N
o
 

1
3
1

G
re

a
t 

W
e
s
te

rn
 c

it
ie

s

R
E

S
O

L
V

E
D

: 
th

a
t 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

b
e

d
e
le

g
a
te

d
to

 t
h
e
 C

h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
, 

in
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 

T
o
 e

n
a
b
le

 t
h
e
 C

it
y
 o

f 
C

a
rd

if
f 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

to
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 
‘S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 

o
f 
In

te
n
t’
 

fo
r 

th
e
 G

re
a
t 

1
9
.0

3
.2

0
1
5

2
3
.0

3
.1

5
2
.0

4
.2

0
1
5

C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e

P
ag

e 
1

o
f 

2
3

Page 9



C
IT

Y
 O

F
 C

A
R

D
IF

F
  

C
O

U
N

C
IL

R
E

G
IS

T
E

R
 O

F
 C

A
B

IN
E

T
D

E
C

IS
IO

N
S

 :
  

1
0

2
0
1
4
/1

5

D
e
c
is

io
n

 
N

o
.

M
in

u
te

 N
o

D
e
c
is

io
n

R
e
a
s
o

n
s

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 
U

n
d

e
rt

a
k

e
n

D
a
te

s
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 f

o
r 

im
p

le
m

e
n

-
ta

ti
o

n
 a

ft
e
r 

d
a
te

 s
h

o
w

n

D
e
c
is

io
n

M
a
d

e
P

u
b

li
c
a
ti

o
n

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

if
  
n

o
 c

a
ll

-i
n

th
e
 L

e
a
d
e
r 

o
f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il,

 t
o
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
jo

in
t 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 G

re
a
t 
W

e
s
te

rn
 

C
it
ie

s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 a

re
a
s
 o

u
tl
in

e
d
 i
n
 

p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
 9

 o
f 
th

is
 r

e
p
o
rt

. 
 

W
e
s
te

rn
 C

it
ie

s
 t

h
a
t 

fo
rm

a
lis

e
s
 r

e
g

io
n
a
l 

c
o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

jo
in

t 
w

o
rk

in
g
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 C

a
rd

if
f,
 

N
e
w

p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 B

ri
s
to

l 
C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
ils

.

C
A

B
/1

4
/

1
0
2

M
in

 N
o
 

1
3
2

C
a
rd

if
f 

In
te

rn
a
ti

o
n

a
l 
S

p
o

rt
s
 

S
ta

d
iu

m

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 i
s
 n

o
t 
fo

r 
p
u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n
 a

s
 i
t 
c
o
n
ta

in
s
 

e
x
e
m

p
t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 

d
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 i
n
 p

a
ra

g
ra

p
h
 1

6
 o

f 
P

a
rt

 4
 o

f 
S

c
h
e
d
u
le

 1
2
A

 o
f 
th

e
 

L
o
c
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

A
c
t 
1
9
7
2

R
E

S
O

L
V

E
D

: 
th

a
t

(a
)

o
n
 s

u
b
m

is
s
io

n
 o

f 
a
 f

in
a
l,
 

d
e
ta

ile
d
 a

n
d
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n
 f
ro

m
 

C
a
rd

if
f 
a
n
d
 V

a
le

 C
o
lle

g
e
 

th
e
 C

a
rd

if
f 
In

te
rn

a
ti
o
n
a
l 

S
p
o
rt

s
 S

ta
d
iu

m
 b

e
re

m
o
v
e
d
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 l
e
is

u
re

 
m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s

T
h
e
 r

a
ti
o
n
a
le

 f
o
r 

re
m

o
v
in

g
 t
h
e
 

S
ta

d
iu

m
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 

le
is

u
re

 p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 i
s
 s

tr
o
n
g
 i
n
 

th
a
t 
it
 w

o
u
ld

 e
n
a
b
le

 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 o

f 
o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 

lo
c
a
lit

y
, 

a
s
 t

h
e
 

C
o
lle

g
e
 a

n
d
 H

o
u
s
e
 

o
f 

S
p
o
rt

 h
a
v
e
 g

o
o
d
 

tr
a
c
k
 r

e
c
o
rd

s
 i
n
 

C
a
rd

if
f.
 T

h
e
 l
e
is

u
re

 
p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 c

a
n
n
o
t 

g
u
a
ra

n
te

e
 t

h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 

o
f 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 

le
a
s
e
 a

rr
a
n
g

e
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

m
is

e
s
, 

a
n
d
 i
s
 

v
e
ry

 u
n
lik

e
ly

 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 

th
e
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

T
h
e
 v

ie
w

s
 o

f 
C

o
u
n
c
ill

o
rs

 
R

ic
h
a
rd

 C
o
o
k
, 

E
ls

m
o
re

 a
n
d
 P

a
te

l 
h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 s

o
u
g

h
t 

a
n
d
 t

o
 d

a
te

, 
th

e
re

 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 n

o
 

n
e
g

a
ti
v
e
 v

ie
w

 
e
x
p
re

s
s
e
d
.

1
9
.0

3
.2

0
1
5

2
3
.0

3
.1

5
2
.0

4
.2

0
1
5

C
h
ri
s
 H

e
s
p
e

P
ag

e 
2

o
f 

2
3

Page 10



C
IT

Y
 O

F
 C

A
R

D
IF

F
  

C
O

U
N

C
IL

R
E

G
IS

T
E

R
 O

F
 C

A
B

IN
E

T
D

E
C

IS
IO

N
S

 :
  

1
0

2
0
1
4
/1

5

D
e
c
is

io
n

 
N

o
.

M
in

u
te

 N
o

D
e
c
is

io
n

R
e
a
s
o

n
s

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 
U

n
d

e
rt

a
k

e
n

D
a
te

s
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 f

o
r 

im
p

le
m

e
n

-
ta

ti
o

n
 a

ft
e
r 

d
a
te

 s
h

o
w

n

D
e
c
is

io
n

M
a
d

e
P

u
b

li
c
a
ti

o
n

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

if
  
n

o
 c

a
ll

-i
n

(b
)

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

b
e
 d

e
le

g
a
te

d
to

 
th

e
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

S
p
o
rt

, 
L
e
is

u
re

 a
n
d
 C

u
lt
u
re

 t
o
 

n
e
g

o
ti
a
te

 t
h
e
 l
e
a
s
e
 a

n
d
 

a
n
y
 a

n
c
ill

a
ry

 
d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 t
o
 C

a
rd

if
f 

a
n
d
 V

a
le

 C
o
lle

g
e
, 
in

 
c
o
n
ju

n
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 

M
e
m

b
e
r 

fo
r 

 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t,

 C
o
-

o
p
e
ra

ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d
 S

o
c
ia

l 
E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
, 
th

e
 C

a
b
in

e
t 

M
e
m

b
e
r 

fo
r 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 1

5
1
 O

ff
ic

e
r

(c
)

th
e
 a

rr
a
n
g

e
m

e
n
t 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 

C
a
rd

if
f 
a
n
d
 V

a
le

 C
o
lle

g
e
 

s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 p

re
d
ic

a
te

d
 o

n
 

p
u
b
lic

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

fa
c
ili

ti
e
s
 b

e
in

g
 

g
u
a
ra

n
te

e
d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 f
u
tu

re
 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

b
e
in

g
 

a
b
le

 t
o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

a
n
d
 

in
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 i
ts

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
. 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

2
0
1
5
/1

6
. 
A

ls
o
, 
th

e
 

le
is

u
re

 p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 c

a
n
n
o
t 
b
e
 

g
u
a
ra

n
te

e
d
 t

o
 a

tt
ra

c
t 

th
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

c
a
p
it
a
l 

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

in
to

 n
e
w

 
fa

c
ili

ti
e
s
 o

n
 t
h
e
 s

it
e
 

in
te

n
d
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 

p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
t.
 T

h
e
 

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
t 
w

o
u
ld

 
e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

m
a
d
e
 t
h
e
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
a
v
in

g
 

a
g

a
in

s
t 
th

e
 S

ta
d
iu

m
.

P
ag

e 
3

o
f 

2
3

Page 11



C
IT

Y
 O

F
 C

A
R

D
IF

F
  

C
O

U
N

C
IL

R
E

G
IS

T
E

R
 O

F
 C

A
B

IN
E

T
D

E
C

IS
IO

N
S

 :
  

1
0

2
0
1
4
/1

5

D
e
c
is

io
n

 
N

o
.

M
in

u
te

 N
o

D
e
c
is

io
n

R
e
a
s
o

n
s

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 
U

n
d

e
rt

a
k

e
n

D
a
te

s
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 f

o
r 

im
p

le
m

e
n

-
ta

ti
o

n
 a

ft
e
r 

d
a
te

 s
h

o
w

n

D
e
c
is

io
n

M
a
d

e
P

u
b

li
c
a
ti

o
n

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

if
  
n

o
 c

a
ll

-i
n

C
A

B
/1

4
/

1
0
3

M
in

 N
o
 

1
3
3

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

P
ro

v
is

io
n

 
in

 
C

a
rd

if
f 

E
a
s
t

R
E

S
O

L
V

E
D

:
th

a
t

1
.

th
e
 

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 

to
 

fu
tu

re
 

s
e
rv

ic
e

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 
in

 
th

e
 

C
a
rd

if
f 

E
a
s
t 
b
e
 a

g
re

e
d

2
.

th
e
 

S
t 

M
e
llo

n
s
 

H
u
b
 

b
e

e
x
te

n
d
e
d
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 
in

 
th

e
L
la

n
ru

m
n
e
y
 H

u
b
 b

e
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p

3
.

th
e
 c

re
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
H

u
b

b
e
 a

g
re

e
d

a
n
d

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 d
e
le

g
a
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 &

 C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

in
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 C

a
b
in

e
t 

M
e
m

b
e
r 

fo
r 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t,

 C
o
-

o
p
e
ra

ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d
 S

o
c
ia

l 
E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
, 
to

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
 

p
la

n
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

a
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 H
u
b
 

T
a
k
in

g
 i
n
to

 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 

th
e
 s

tr
o
n
g
 f

e
e
lin

g
 

a
m

o
n
g

 t
h
e
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 t

h
a
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

a
re

a
 i
t 
is

 p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 

th
a
t 
a
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
H

u
b
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 

Y
o
u
th

 C
e
n
tr

e
 

b
u
ild

in
g

, 
th

e
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
’s

 
p
re

fe
rr

e
d
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 

v
e
n
u
e
, 

w
h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 

th
e
 s

p
a
c
e
 t
o
 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
te

 a
 

ra
n
g

e
 o

f 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
. 

T
h
e
 

e
x
is

ti
n
g

 l
ib

ra
ry

 
b
u
ild

in
g

 w
o
u
ld

 
re

m
a
in

 o
p
e
n
 u

n
ti
l 
th

e
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 h
u
b
 w

a
s
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
. 

R
u
m

n
e
y
 L

ib
ra

ry
 

b
u
ild

in
g

 i
s
 o

w
n
e
d
 b

y
 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

(f
re

e
h
o
ld

),
 i
t 

is
 

p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 

L
o
c
a
l 
M

e
m

b
e
rs

 
h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

a
d
v
is

e
d
 o

f
th

e
 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
a
n
d
 a

 
d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
 w

a
s
 

h
e
ld

 w
it
h
 o

n
e
 

M
e
m

b
e
r.

 T
h
e
re

 
w

a
s
 a

 s
tr

o
n
g
 v

ie
w

 
d
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
a
t 

d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
re

 s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

 
s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 l
ib

ra
ry

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 H

u
b
 

w
it
h
 a

s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 o

n
 

h
a
n
d
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 

fo
r 

th
e
 e

ld
e
rl
y
. 

A
ls

o
 t

h
a
t 
a
n
y
 

c
a
p
it
a
l 
re

le
a
s
e
d
 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 s

a
le

 o
f 

th
e
 l
ib

ra
ry

 s
h
o
u
ld

 
b
e
 r

e
in

v
e
s
te

d
 i
n
 

th
e
 H

u
b
 b

u
ild

in
g
. 

S
h
o
u
ld

 t
h
e
 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
b
e
 

a
g
re

e
d
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

o
u
ld

 
ta

k
e
 p

la
c
e
 w

it
h
 

lo
c
a
l 
w

a
rd

 
m

e
m

b
e
rs

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

1
9
.0

3
.2

0
1
5

2
3
.0

3
.1

5
2
.0

4
.2

0
1
5

S
a
ra

h
 

M
c
G

Il
l

P
ag

e 
4

o
f 

2
3

Page 12



C
IT

Y
 O

F
 C

A
R

D
IF

F
  

C
O

U
N

C
IL

R
E

G
IS

T
E

R
 O

F
 C

A
B

IN
E

T
D

E
C

IS
IO

N
S

 :
  

1
0

2
0
1
4
/1

5

D
e
c
is

io
n

 
N

o
.

M
in

u
te

 N
o

D
e
c
is

io
n

R
e
a
s
o

n
s

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 
U

n
d

e
rt

a
k

e
n

D
a
te

s
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 f

o
r 

im
p

le
m

e
n

-
ta

ti
o

n
 a

ft
e
r 

d
a
te

 s
h

o
w

n

D
e
c
is

io
n

M
a
d

e
P

u
b

li
c
a
ti

o
n

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

if
  
n

o
 c

a
ll

-i
n

b
a
s
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 R

u
m

n
e
y
 

Y
o
u
th

 C
e
n
tr

e
 b

u
ild

in
g
; 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 o

n
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

to
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
. 
T

h
e
 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 

lib
ra

ry
 b

u
ild

in
g
 w

ill
 

re
m

a
in

 o
p
e
n
 u

n
ti
l
th

e
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 H
u
b
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 a

n
d
 w

o
u
ld

 
th

e
n
 b

e
 s

o
ld

 o
n
 t

h
e
 o

p
e
n
 

m
a
rk

e
t.
 T

h
e
 p

ro
c
e
e
d
s
 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 s

a
le

 w
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

re
in

v
e
s
te

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 n

e
w

 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 H
u
b
 i
n
 

R
u
m

n
e
y
. 

b
u
ild

in
g

 i
s
 s

o
ld

 o
n
 

th
e
 o

p
e
n
 m

a
rk

e
t.
 

T
h
e
 o

ri
g

in
a
l 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 

w
a
s
 t

h
a
t 
m

o
n
e
y
 f
ro

m
 

th
e
 s

a
le

 o
f 

R
u
m

n
e
y
 

L
ib

ra
ry

 c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

re
in

v
e
s
te

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

re
m

o
d
e
lli

n
g
 o

f 
L
la

n
ru

m
n
e
y
 H

u
b
 t

o
 

e
x
te

n
d
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 

H
u
b
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r 

a
ft

e
r 

lis
te

n
in

g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 v

ie
w

s
 

ra
is

e
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 i
t 
is

 
p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
s
e
 

fu
n
d
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

in
v
e
s
te

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

R
u
m

n
e
y
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
h
u
b

a
s
 t
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 

d
o
e
s
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
 s

o
m

e
 

u
p
g
ra

d
in

g
 a

n
d
 

m
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 

s
o
m

e
 r

e
c
o
n
fi
g

u
ra

ti
o
n
 

w
ill

 b
e
 n

e
e
d
e
d
 t

o
 

m
e
e
t 
th

e
 n

e
w

 
re

q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

. 
C

lo
s
u
re

 o
f 

th
e
 l
ib

ra
ry

 

lo
c
a
l 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

a
b
o
u
t 
th

e
 d

e
ta

il 
o
f 

th
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 a

n
d
 

a
b
o
u
t 

a
n
y
 o

th
e
r 

c
h
a
n
g

e
s
 n

e
e
d
e
d
 

to
 m

a
k
e
 t
h
e
 

b
u
ild

in
g

 f
u
lly

 
a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
.

P
ag

e 
5

o
f 

2
3

Page 13



C
IT

Y
 O

F
 C

A
R

D
IF

F
  

C
O

U
N

C
IL

R
E

G
IS

T
E

R
 O

F
 C

A
B

IN
E

T
D

E
C

IS
IO

N
S

 :
  

1
0

2
0
1
4
/1

5

D
e
c
is

io
n

 
N

o
.

M
in

u
te

 N
o

D
e
c
is

io
n

R
e
a
s
o

n
s

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 
U

n
d

e
rt

a
k

e
n

D
a
te

s
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 f

o
r 

im
p

le
m

e
n

-
ta

ti
o

n
 a

ft
e
r 

d
a
te

 s
h

o
w

n

D
e
c
is

io
n

M
a
d

e
P

u
b

li
c
a
ti

o
n

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

if
  
n

o
 c

a
ll

-i
n

b
u
ild

in
g

 w
o
u
ld

 
g

e
n
e
ra

te
 r

e
v
e
n
u
e
 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 o

f 
a
p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 

£
1
0
1
,0

0
0
.

M
in

 N
o
 

1
3
4

2
0
1
4
-1

5
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

3
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 R

e
p

o
rt

  

R
E

S
O

L
V

E
D

:t
h
a
t
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

p
o
s
it
io

n
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 
o
f 

k
e
y
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

s
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

3
 b

e
 n

o
te

d
 

T
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t:
-

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 
m

a
d
e
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 
th

a
t 
th

e
 c

u
lt
u
re

 o
f 

m
a
n
a
g

in
g
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 

e
m

b
e
d
d
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

c
le

a
r 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ta

b
ili

ti
e
s
 

a
re

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 

fo
r 

th
e
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

re
a
s
 

T
h
is

 m
a
tt

e
r 

is
 f
o
r 

n
o
ti
n
g
 
a
n
d

is
n
o
t,
 

th
e
re

fo
re

, 
s
u
b
je

c
t 
to

 c
a
ll-

in

C
A

B
/1

4
/

1
0
4

M
in

 N
o
 

1
3
5

N
o

n
-D

o
m

e
s
ti

c
 R

a
te

s
 -

W
ri

te
 

O
ff

s
  

A
p

p
e
n

d
ic

e
s
 A

 a
n

d
 B

  
to

 t
h

is
 

re
p

o
rt

 a
re

 e
x
e
m

p
t 

fr
o

m
 

p
u

b
li

c
a
ti

o
n

 b
y
 v

ir
tu

e
 o

f 
p

a
ra

g
ra

p
h

 1
4
 o

f 
P

a
rt

 4
 a

n
d

 

It
 i
s
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 

th
a
t 
th

e
 d

e
b
ts

 a
re

 
w

ri
tt

e
n
 o

ff
 a

s
 t

h
e
y
 

a
re

 i
rr

e
c
o
v
e
ra

b
le

.

1
9
.0

3
.2

0
1
5

2
3
.0

3
.1

5
2
.0

4
.2

0
1
5

C
h
ri
s
ti
n
e
 

S
a
lt
e
r

P
ag

e 
6

o
f 

2
3

Page 14



C
IT

Y
 O

F
 C

A
R

D
IF

F
  

C
O

U
N

C
IL

R
E

G
IS

T
E

R
 O

F
 C

A
B

IN
E

T
D

E
C

IS
IO

N
S

 :
  

1
0

2
0
1
4
/1

5

D
e
c
is

io
n

 
N

o
.

M
in

u
te

 N
o

D
e
c
is

io
n

R
e
a
s
o

n
s

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 
U

n
d

e
rt

a
k

e
n

D
a
te

s
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 f

o
r 

im
p

le
m

e
n

-
ta

ti
o

n
 a

ft
e
r 

d
a
te

 s
h

o
w

n

D
e
c
is

io
n

M
a
d

e
P

u
b

li
c
a
ti

o
n

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

if
  
n

o
 c

a
ll

-i
n

p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

 2
1
 o

f 
P

a
rt

 5
 o

f 
S

c
h

e
d

u
le

 1
2
A

 o
f 

th
e
 L

o
c
a
l 

G
o

v
e
rn

m
e
n

t 
A

c
t 

1
9
7
2

R
E

S
O

L
V

E
D

:
th

a
t 

th
e
 w

ri
te

 o
ff

 
o
f 

d
e
b
ts

 
a
m

o
u
n
ti
n
g

 
to

 
£
7
3
1
,3

9
5
.8

7
 

a
s
 

o
u
tl
in

e
d
 

in
 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 
A

to
 

th
e
 

re
p
o
rt

 
b
e
 

a
u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 

M
in

 N
o
 

1
3
6

P
a

y
 P

o
li

c
y
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
. 
 

R
E

S
O

L
V

E
D

:t
h
a
t 

1
)

th
e
 a

tt
a
c
h
e
d
 P

a
y
 P

o
lic

y
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n
t 
2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

(A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1
) 

b
e
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 

fo
r 

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 b

y
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

o
n
 2

6
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
5

2
)

In
 l
ig

h
t 

o
f 
th

e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 

o
u
tl
in

e
d
 i
n
 p

a
ra

g
ra

p
h
s
 7

-
1
0
 o

f 
th

is
 r

e
p
o
rt

, 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

b
e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d

to
 a

g
re

e
th

a
t 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
 P

a
y
 

P
o
lic

y
 S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 
w

ill
 

in
c
lu

d
e
 t

h
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 

T
o
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

le
g

a
l 
re

q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 

u
n
d
e
r 

th
e
 L

o
c
a
lis

m
 

A
c
t 

2
0
1
1
 b

u
t 

p
ro

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 

p
o
lic

y
 s

ta
te

m
e
n
t 

w
ill

 
a
ls

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

o
p
e
n
n
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ta

b
ili

ty
 i
n
 h

o
w

 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

re
w

a
rd

s
 

it
 s

ta
ff

.

T
h
e
s
e
 m

a
tt

e
rs

 a
re

 t
o
 b

e
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d
 b

y
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 a

re
 n

o
t,
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

, 
s
u
b
je

c
t 
to

 
c
a
ll-

in

P
ag

e 
7

o
f 

2
3

Page 15



C
IT

Y
 O

F
 C

A
R

D
IF

F
  

C
O

U
N

C
IL

R
E

G
IS

T
E

R
 O

F
 C

A
B

IN
E

T
D

E
C

IS
IO

N
S

 :
  

1
0

2
0
1
4
/1

5

D
e
c
is

io
n

 
N

o
.

M
in

u
te

 N
o

D
e
c
is

io
n

R
e
a
s
o

n
s

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 
U

n
d

e
rt

a
k

e
n

D
a
te

s
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 f

o
r 

im
p

le
m

e
n

-
ta

ti
o

n
 a

ft
e
r 

d
a
te

 s
h

o
w

n

D
e
c
is

io
n

M
a
d

e
P

u
b

li
c
a
ti

o
n

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

if
  
n

o
 c

a
ll

-i
n

p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
:

1
4
.2

T
h
e
 J

N
C

 f
o
r 

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 n
e
g

o
ti
a
te

s
 

o
n
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
(U

K
) 

a
n
n
u
a
l 
c
o
s
t 
o
f 

liv
in

g
 

p
a
y
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
s
 f

o
r 

th
is

 g
ro

u
p
, 

a
n
d
 a

n
y
 

a
w

a
rd

 o
f 

s
a
m

e
 i
s
 

d
e
te

rm
in

e
d
 o

n
 t

h
is

 
b
a
s
is

. 
C

h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 
e
m

p
lo

y
e
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

J
N

C
 

te
rm

s
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 

a
re

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
tu

a
lly

 
e
n
ti
tl
e
d
 t

o
 a

n
y
 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
J
N

C
 p

a
y
 

ri
s
e
s
. 
T

h
is

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill

 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 p
a
y
 

th
e
s
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
lly

 
a
g
re

e
d
 p

a
y
 a

w
a
rd

s
 

a
s
 a

n
d
 w

h
e
n
 

d
e
te

rm
in

e
d
 u

n
le

s
s
 

fu
ll 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

d
e
c
id

e
s
 

o
th

e
rw

is
e
.

(3
)

C
o
u
n
c
il 

b
e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 

to
 a

g
re

e
th

a
t 
th

e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 

p
a
y
 a

w
a
rd

 f
o
r 

J
N

C
 C

h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

fr
o
m

 1
s
t
J
a
n
u
a
ry

 

P
ag

e 
8

o
f 

2
3

Page 16



C
IT

Y
 O

F
 C

A
R

D
IF

F
  

C
O

U
N

C
IL

R
E

G
IS

T
E

R
 O

F
 C

A
B

IN
E

T
D

E
C

IS
IO

N
S

 :
  

1
0

2
0
1
4
/1

5

D
e
c
is

io
n

 
N

o
.

M
in

u
te

 N
o

D
e
c
is

io
n

R
e
a
s
o

n
s

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 
U

n
d

e
rt

a
k

e
n

D
a
te

s
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 f

o
r 

im
p

le
m

e
n

-
ta

ti
o

n
 a

ft
e
r 

d
a
te

 s
h

o
w

n

D
e
c
is

io
n

M
a
d

e
P

u
b

li
c
a
ti

o
n

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

if
  
n

o
 c

a
ll

-i
n

2
0
1
5
. 
T

h
e
 p

a
y
 a

w
a
rd

 i
s
 

2
%

 f
o
r 

s
a
la

ri
e
s
 b

e
lo

w
 

£
9
9
,9

9
9
. 
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 p

a
y
 

a
w

a
rd

 f
o
r 

s
a
la

ri
e
s
 a

b
o
v
e
 

£
1
0
0
,0

0
0
.

C
A

B
/1

4
/

1
0
5

M
in

 N
o
 

1
3
7

G
la

m
o

rg
a
n

 C
o

u
n

ty
 C

ri
c
k
e
t 

C
lu

b
 L

o
a
n

 W
ri

te
 o

ff
 a

n
d

 

R
e
s
tr

u
c
tu

ri
n

g

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 1
 a

n
d

 2
 t

o
 t

h
is

 
R

e
p

o
rt

 a
re

 n
o

t 
fo

r 
p

u
b

li
c
a
ti

o
n

 a
s
 t

h
e
y
 c

o
n

ta
in

 
e
x
e
m

p
t 

in
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e
 

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 i
n

 P
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

s
 

1
4
 a

n
d

 2
1
 o

f 
S

c
h

e
d

u
le

 1
2
a
 t

o
 

th
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n

t 
A

c
t 

1
9
7
2

R
E

S
O

L
V

E
D

:
th

a
t

1
.

In
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 o

th
e
r 

m
a
in

 
c
re

d
it
o
rs

, 
it
 b

e
 a

g
re

e
d
 t

o
 

w
ri
te

-o
ff

 c
ir
c
a
 7

0
%

 o
f 

th
e
 

v
a
lu

e
 o

f 
s
u
m

s
 o

u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 

o
n
 l
o
a
n
s
 m

a
d
e
 t
o
 

G
la

m
o
rg

a
n
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
ri
c
k
e
t 

C
lu

b
.

T
h
e
 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
n
o
t 

a
c
c
e
p
ti
n
g

 t
h
e
 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
a
re

 t
h
e
 

lik
e
ly

 i
n
s
o
lv

e
n
c
y
 o

f 
th

e
 C

lu
b
 o

r 
a
 c

h
a
n
g

e
 

in
 l
e
g

a
l 
s
ta

tu
s
 w

h
ic

h
 

c
o
u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
c
o
s
t 

im
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

C
lu

b
, 

re
p
u
ta

ti
o
n
a
l 

im
p
a
c
t,
 l
o
s
s
 o

f 
te

s
t 

o
r 

o
th

e
r 

m
a
jo

r 
m

a
tc

h
 

s
ta

tu
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 

m
a
tc

h
 a

w
a
rd

s
.

In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
a
d
v
ic

e
 

in
d
ic

a
te

s
 t

h
e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 

le
v
e

l 
o
f 

d
e
b
t 

o
f 
th

e
 

C
lu

b
 i
s
 u

n
-s

e
rv

ic
a
b
le

 
a
n
d
 e

v
e
n
 w

it
h
 a

 
c
ir
c
a
 7

0
%

 w
ri
te

 

1
9
.0

3
.2

0
1
5

2
3
.0

3
.1

5
2
.0

4
.2

0
1
5

C
h
ri
s
ti
n
e
 

S
a
lt
e
r

P
ag

e 
9

o
f 

2
3

Page 17



C
IT

Y
 O

F
 C

A
R

D
IF

F
  

C
O

U
N

C
IL

R
E

G
IS

T
E

R
 O

F
 C

A
B

IN
E

T
D

E
C

IS
IO

N
S

 :
  

1
0

2
0
1
4
/1

5

D
e
c
is

io
n

 
N

o
.

M
in

u
te

 N
o

D
e
c
is

io
n

R
e
a
s
o

n
s

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 
U

n
d

e
rt

a
k

e
n

D
a
te

s
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 f

o
r 

im
p

le
m

e
n

-
ta

ti
o

n
 a

ft
e
r 

d
a
te

 s
h

o
w

n

D
e
c
is

io
n

M
a
d

e
P

u
b

li
c
a
ti

o
n

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

if
  
n

o
 c

a
ll

-i
n

2
.

th
e
 h

e
a
d
s
 o

f 
te

rm
s
 a

n
d
 

re
v
is

e
d
 t

e
rm

s
 f
o
r 

re
p
a
y
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

a
m

o
u
n
ts

 
o
u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
b
e
 a

g
re

e
d
,

w
h

ils
t 

a
c
k
n
o
w

le
d
g

in
g

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
re

 c
a
n
 b

e
 n

o
 a

b
s
o
lu

te
 

g
u
a
ra

n
te

e
 t

h
a
t 

in
c
o
m

e
 

g
e
n
e
ra

te
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 C

lu
b
 w

ill
 

e
n
a
b
le

 i
t 

to
 r

e
p
a
y
 t

h
e
 

p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 r

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
d
 

lo
a
n
.

3
.

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 b
e
 d

e
le

g
a
te

d
 t

o
 

th
e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 t
o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 

re
v
is

e
d
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l 
te

rm
s
 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 c

lu
b
 i
n

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 C

o
u
n
ty

 
S

o
lic

it
o
r 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 C

a
b
in

e
t 

M
e
m

b
e
r 

fo
r 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
..

d
o
w

n
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
a
n
d
 

o
p
e
ra

ti
n
g

 r
is

k
s
 

re
m

a
in

.

T
h
e
 f

ir
s
t 
c
re

d
it
o
r 

h
a
s
 

a
g
re

e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 t
e
rm

s
 

o
f 

th
e
 r

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

ri
n
g

, 
s
u
b
je

c
t 
to

 t
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

a
ls

o
 d

o
in

g
 

s
o
, 

w
h
ic

h
 g

iv
e
s
 

a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 t

h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

is
 a

c
ti
n
g
 i
n
 

a
c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 

M
a
rk

e
t 
In

v
e
s
to

r 
P

ri
n
c
ip

le
.

T
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
in

 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 A

IB
 

is
 a

 g
e
n
e
ro

u
s
 o

n
e
 a

s
 

in
 s

im
ila

r 
s
it
u
a
ti
o
n
s
, 

lo
w

e
r 

ra
n
k
in

g
 

c
re

d
it
o
rs

 w
o
u
ld

 
n
o
rm

a
lly

 b
e
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d
 

to
 w

ri
te

-o
ff

 t
h
e
ir
 

o
u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 a

m
o
u
n
ts

 
in

 f
u
ll.

 T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill

 r
e
ta

in
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 t

o
 

P
ag

e 
1

0
o

f 
2

3

Page 18



C
IT

Y
 O

F
 C

A
R

D
IF

F
  

C
O

U
N

C
IL

R
E

G
IS

T
E

R
 O

F
 C

A
B

IN
E

T
D

E
C

IS
IO

N
S

 :
  

1
0

2
0
1
4
/1

5

D
e
c
is

io
n

 
N

o
.

M
in

u
te

 N
o

D
e
c
is

io
n

R
e
a
s
o

n
s

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 
U

n
d

e
rt

a
k

e
n

D
a
te

s
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 f

o
r 

im
p

le
m

e
n

-
ta

ti
o

n
 a

ft
e
r 

d
a
te

 s
h

o
w

n

D
e
c
is

io
n

M
a
d

e
P

u
b

li
c
a
ti

o
n

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

if
  
n

o
 c

a
ll

-i
n

re
c
o
u
p
 s

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 

lo
a
n
 a

m
o
u
n
t 
in

 
fu

tu
re

y
e
a
rs

 i
n
 

a
c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 

re
v
is

e
d
 l
o
a
n
 

a
g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

 o
r 

s
h
o
u
ld

 t
h
e
re

 b
e
 a

 
re

v
e
rs

a
l 
in

 t
h
e
 C

lu
b
’s

 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
p
o
s
it
io

n
. 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
ls

o
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 d

is
c
u
s
s
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 t

o
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 o

th
e
r 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 

C
lu

b
 f

o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

 t
h
e
 

u
s
e
 o

f 
ro

o
m

s
 a

t 
th

e
 

s
ta

d
iu

m
 w

h
e
re

 
re

le
v
a
n
t.

C
A

B
/1

4
/

1
0
6

M
in

 N
o
 

1
3
8

C
a
b

in
e
t 

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
e
 t

o
 R

e
p

o
rt

 
o

f 
th

e
: 

C
h

il
d

re
n

 &
 Y

o
u

n
g

 
P

e
o

p
le

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 

e
n

ti
tl

e
d

 '
L

o
o

k
e
d

 A
ft

e
r 

C
h

il
d

re
n

's
 T

ra
n

s
it

io
n

 t
o

 
In

d
e
p

e
n

d
e
n

t 
L

iv
in

g
' 
 

R
E

S
O

L
V

E
D

:
th

a
t
th

e
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 s

e
t 
o
u
t 
in

 t
h
e
 

a
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 t
o
 t

h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 i
n
 

T
o
 e

n
a
b
le

 C
a
b
in

e
t 
to

 
re

s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 
o
f

th
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 

Y
o
u
n
g

 P
e
o
p
le

 
S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

a
ri
s
in

g
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 w

o
rk

 
o
f 

a
 T

a
s
k
 a

n
d
 F

in
is

h
 

G
ro

u
p
 c

o
n
v
e
n
e
d
 b

y
 

th
e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 t
o
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

T
ra

n
s
it
io

n
s
 

1
9
.0

3
.2

0
1
5

2
3
.0

3
.1

5
2
.0

4
.2

0
1
5

T
o
n
y
 Y

o
u
n
g

P
ag

e 
1

1
o

f 
2

3

Page 19



C
IT

Y
 O

F
 C

A
R

D
IF

F
  

C
O

U
N

C
IL

R
E

G
IS

T
E

R
 O

F
 C

A
B

IN
E

T
D

E
C

IS
IO

N
S

 :
  

1
0

2
0
1
4
/1

5

D
e
c
is

io
n

 
N

o
.

M
in

u
te

 N
o

D
e
c
is

io
n

R
e
a
s
o

n
s

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 
U

n
d

e
rt

a
k

e
n

D
a
te

s
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 f

o
r 

im
p

le
m

e
n

-
ta

ti
o

n
 a

ft
e
r 

d
a
te

 s
h

o
w

n

D
e
c
is

io
n

M
a
d

e
P

u
b

li
c
a
ti

o
n

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

if
  
n

o
 c

a
ll

-i
n

re
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
 

re
p
o
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 T

a
s
k
 a

n
d
 F

in
is

h
 

G
ro

u
p
 c

o
n
v
e
n
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 

s
c
ru

ti
n
y
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
 t
o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

th
e
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
c
a
re

 l
e
a
v
e
rs

 i
n
 

T
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 b

e
 a

g
re

e
d

fo
r 

C
a
re

 L
e
a
v
e
rs

.

C
A

B
/1

4
/

1
0
7

M
in

 N
o
 

1
3
9

S
c
h

o
o

l 
A

d
m

is
s
io

n
 

A
rr

a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
 2

0
1
6
/2

0
1
7
 

R
E

S
O

L
V

E
D

:
th

a
t

it
 b

e
 n

o
te

d
 

th
e
 d

ra
ft

 S
c
h
o
o
l 
A

d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 

A
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 2
0
1
6
/2

0
1
7
 h

a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d
 a

n
d
  
th

e
 

A
d
m

is
s
io

n
 P

o
lic

y
 2

0
1
6
/1

7
 b

e
 

a
g
re

e
d

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

is
 

re
q

u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
a
d
m

is
s
io

n
 

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 
a
n
n
u
a
lly

 a
n
d
 t

o
 

a
g
re

e
 t
h
e
 

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 
fo

llo
w

in
g

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
.

T
h
e
 d

ra
ft
 S

c
h
o
o
l 

A
d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 P

o
lic

y
 

w
a
s
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 f

o
r 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 1

5
 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
 t
o
 

h
e
a
d
te

a
c
h
e
rs

, 
g

o
v
e
rn

in
g
 b

o
d
ie

s
, 

d
io

c
e
s
a
n
 

d
ir
e
c
to

rs
, 

n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
ri
n
g

 l
o
c
a
l 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 

o
th

e
r 

in
te

re
s
te

d
 

b
o
d
ie

s
.

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 w

e
re

 
re

q
u
e
s
te

d
 t

o
 b

e
 

re
tu

rn
e
d
 b

y
 2

3
 

J
a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
5
.

1
9
.0

3
.2

0
1
5

2
3
.0

3
.1

5
2
.0

4
.2

0
1
5

N
ic

k
 

B
a
tc

h
e
la

r

P
ag

e 
1

2
o

f 
2

3

Page 20



C
IT

Y
 O

F
 C

A
R

D
IF

F
  

C
O

U
N

C
IL

R
E

G
IS

T
E

R
 O

F
 C

A
B

IN
E

T
D

E
C

IS
IO

N
S

 :
  

1
0

2
0
1
4
/1

5

D
e
c
is

io
n

 
N

o
.

M
in

u
te

 N
o

D
e
c
is

io
n

R
e
a
s
o

n
s

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 
U

n
d

e
rt

a
k

e
n

D
a
te

s
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 f

o
r 

im
p

le
m

e
n

-
ta

ti
o

n
 a

ft
e
r 

d
a
te

 s
h

o
w

n

D
e
c
is

io
n

M
a
d

e
P

u
b

li
c
a
ti

o
n

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

if
  
n

o
 c

a
ll

-i
n

C
A

B
/1

4
/

1
0
8

M
in

 N
o
 

1
4
0

R
e
a
li

g
n

m
e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 

2
1

s
t

S
c
h

o
o

ls
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

A
p

p
e
n

d
ic

e
s
 2

 &
 3

 a
re

 n
o

t 
fo

r 
p

u
b

li
c
a
ti

o
n

 a
s
 t

h
e
y
 c

o
n

ta
in

 
e
x
e
m

p
t 

in
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e
 

d
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 i
n

 p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

(s
) 

1
6
 o

f 
P

a
rt

 4
 o

f 
S

c
h

e
d

u
le

 1
2
A

 
o

f 
th

e
 L

o
c
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n

t 
A

c
t 

1
9
7
2

R
E

S
O

L
V

E
D

: 
th

a
t

1
.

th
e
 r

e
a
lig

n
e
d
 2

1
s
t
C

e
n
tu

ry
 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
b
e
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
. 

2
.

it
 b

e
 n

o
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 

a
p
p
ro

v
a
l 
in

 p
ri
n
c
ip

le
 o

f 
th

e
 

re
a
lig

n
e
d
 s

tr
a
te

g
y

b
y
 

W
e
ls

h
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
is

 
re

q
u
ir
e
d
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 L

if
e
lo

n
g
 

L
e
a
rn

in
g

b
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
e
d

to
 

s
e
e
k
 t

o
 s

e
c
u
re

 W
e
ls

h
 

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

a
p
p
ro

v
a
l 
in

 
p
ri
n
c
ip

le
 f

o
r 

th
e
 r

e
a
lig

n
e
d
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
g
ra

n
t 
fu

n
d
in

g
.

In
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
, 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

s
u
b
m

it
te

d
 a

 2
1
s
t 

C
e
n
tu

ry
 S

c
h
o
o
ls

 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 b

id
 t

o
 

W
e
ls

h
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t.
 

T
h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

C
a
p
it
a
l 

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

c
o
n
ta

in
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
a
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 k

n
o
w

n
 

a
s
 “

B
a
n
d

A
”,

 w
a
s
 

£
1
3
7
.3

2
8
 m

ill
io

n
 a

n
d
 

th
is

 w
a
s
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 i
n
 

p
ri
n
c
ip

le
 i
n
 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
. 

T
h
e
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 n

o
w

 
n
e
e
d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 

re
a
lig

n
e
d
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 

a
c
c
o
u
n
t 

o
f 
c
h
a
n
g

e
s
 

s
in

c
e
 2

0
1
1
.

T
h
is

 
in

c
lu

d
e
s
 t

h
e
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 

a
d
d
re

s
s
 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

le
v
e

ls
 o

f 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

a
tt

a
in

m
e
n
t 

a
t 
K

S
4
 i
n
 

th
e
 S

o
u
th

e
rn

 a
rc

; 
p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 

o
f 

p
ri
m

a
ry

 p
la

c
e
s
 

e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 b

e
s
t 

v
a
lu

e
 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
s
 

h
a
v
e
 t

a
k
e
n
 p

la
c
e
 

w
it
h
 a

 r
a
n
g

e
 o

f 
s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 
a
b
o
u
t 
th

e
re

a
lig

n
e
d
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

a
n
d
 a

im
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

2
1

s
t
C

e
n
tu

ry
 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
. 
 

T
h
e
s
e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 

L
o
c
a
l 
M

e
m

b
e
rs

, 
D

io
c
e
s
e
, 

A
rc

h
 

D
io

c
e
s
e
, 

H
e
a
d
 

T
e
a
c
h
e
rs

 a
n
d
 

G
o
v
e
rn

in
g
 B

o
d
ie

s
.

1
9
.0

3
.2

0
1
5

2
3
.0

3
.1

5
2
.0

4
.2

0
1
5

N
ic

k
 

B
a
tc

h
e
la

r

P
ag

e 
1

3
o

f 
2

3

Page 21



C
IT

Y
 O

F
 C

A
R

D
IF

F
  

C
O

U
N

C
IL

R
E

G
IS

T
E

R
 O

F
 C

A
B

IN
E

T
D

E
C

IS
IO

N
S

 :
  

1
0

2
0
1
4
/1

5

D
e
c
is

io
n

 
N

o
.

M
in

u
te

 N
o

D
e
c
is

io
n

R
e
a
s
o

n
s

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 
U

n
d

e
rt

a
k

e
n

D
a
te

s
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 f

o
r 

im
p

le
m

e
n

-
ta

ti
o

n
 a

ft
e
r 

d
a
te

 s
h

o
w

n

D
e
c
is

io
n

M
a
d

e
P

u
b

li
c
a
ti

o
n

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

if
  
n

o
 c

a
ll

-i
n

3
.

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

b
e
 d

e
le

g
a
te

d
to

 
th

e
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

E
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

(i
n
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 f
o
r

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 &

 S
k
ill

s
 a

n
d
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 &

 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
, 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 
S

o
lic

it
o
r,

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
fo

r 
R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
) 

to
 n

e
g

o
ti
a
te

 
a
n
d
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 t
h
e
 

p
u
rc

h
a
s
e
 o

f 
la

n
d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 

H
a
m

a
d
ry

a
d
 P

e
n
in

s
u
la

 f
o
r 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 t
o
 

d
is

p
o
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 l
a
n
d
 

a
d
ja

c
e
n
t 
to

 C
o
u
n
ty

 H
a
ll.

4
.

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

b
e
 d

e
le

a
g
te

d
to

 
th

e
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 &

 
L
if
e
lo

n
g

 L
e
a
rn

in
g

 (
in

 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 f
o
r 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 &

 S
k
ill

s
 a

n
d
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 &

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
, 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 
S

o
lic

it
o
r,

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
fo

r 
R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
) 

to
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 
a
n
d
 t

h
e
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
re

 
a
s
s
e
ts

 t
h
a
t 

b
e
n
e
fi
t 

th
e
ir
 w

id
e
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
.

P
ag

e 
1

4
o

f 
2

3

Page 22



C
IT

Y
 O

F
 C

A
R

D
IF

F
  

C
O

U
N

C
IL

R
E

G
IS

T
E

R
 O

F
 C

A
B

IN
E

T
D

E
C

IS
IO

N
S

 :
  

1
0

2
0
1
4
/1

5

D
e
c
is

io
n

 
N

o
.

M
in

u
te

 N
o

D
e
c
is

io
n

R
e
a
s
o

n
s

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 
U

n
d

e
rt

a
k

e
n

D
a
te

s
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 f

o
r 

im
p

le
m

e
n

-
ta

ti
o

n
 a

ft
e
r 

d
a
te

 s
h

o
w

n

D
e
c
is

io
n

M
a
d

e
P

u
b

li
c
a
ti

o
n

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

if
  
n

o
 c

a
ll

-i
n

a
ll 

a
s
p
e
c
ts

 o
f 
th

e
 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
 

(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 f
o
r 

th
e
 

a
v
o
id

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
d
o
u
b
t 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

a
ll 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

s
e
le

c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 a

w
a
rd

 
c
ri
te

ri
a
, 
c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
th

ro
u
g

h
 t

o
 

a
w

a
rd

 o
f 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

) 
fo

r 
s
p
e
c
if
ic

 2
1

s
t
C

e
n
tu

ry
 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 i
n
 l
in

e
 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 r

e
a
lig

n
e
d
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 

o
n
c
e
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 

th
re

s
h
o
ld

s
 s

e
t 
o
u
t 
in

 
p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
s
 7

8
 t
o
 8

0
, 
s
a
v
e
 

th
a
t 
in

 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 

th
e
 

E
a
s
te

rn
 H

ig
h
 S

c
h
o
o
l 

P
ro

je
c
t,
 t

h
e

th
re

s
h
o
ld

s
 

re
fe

rr
e
d
 t

o
 a

b
o
v
e
 w

ill
 b

e
 

a
m

e
n
d
e
d
 a

s
 s

e
t 

o
u
t 

in
 

p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
 8

1
.

P
ag

e 
1

5
o

f 
2

3

Page 23



C
IT

Y
 O

F
 C

A
R

D
IF

F
  

C
O

U
N

C
IL

R
E

G
IS

T
E

R
 O

F
 C

A
B

IN
E

T
D

E
C

IS
IO

N
S

 :
  

1
0

2
0
1
4
/1

5

D
e
c
is

io
n

 
N

o
.

M
in

u
te

 N
o

D
e
c
is

io
n

R
e
a
s
o

n
s

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 
U

n
d

e
rt

a
k

e
n

D
a
te

s
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 f

o
r 

im
p

le
m

e
n

-
ta

ti
o

n
 a

ft
e
r 

d
a
te

 s
h

o
w

n

D
e
c
is

io
n

M
a
d

e
P

u
b

li
c
a
ti

o
n

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

if
  
n

o
 c

a
ll

-i
n

C
A

B
/1

4
/

1
0
9

M
in

 N
o
 

1
4
1

S
c
h

o
o

l 
T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 
P

o
li

c
y
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 P

u
p

il
s
 A

g
e
d

 1
6

 t
o

 1
9
 

F
re

e
 

H
o

m
e
 

T
o

 
S

c
h

o
o

l 
T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 B
 t

o
 t

h
is

 r
e
p

o
rt

 i
s
 

n
o

t 
fo

r 
p

u
b

li
c
a
ti

o
n

 u
n

d
e
r 

S
c
h

e
d

u
le

 1
2
A

 P
a
rt

 4
 

p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

s
 1

6
 a

n
d

 2
1
 o

f 
th

e
 

L
o

c
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n

t 
A

c
t 

1
9
7
2
 

(a
s
 a

m
e
n

d
e
d

) 
in

 t
h

a
t 

it
 

c
o

n
ta

in
s
 i

n
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 i
n

 
re

s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

w
h

ic
h

 a
 c

la
im

 t
o

 
le

g
a
l 
p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
l 

p
ri

v
il
e
g

e
 

c
o

u
ld

 b
e
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d

 i
n

 l
e
g

a
l 

p
ro

c
e
e
d

in
g

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 p

u
b

li
c
 

in
te

re
s
t 

in
 m

a
in

ta
in

in
g

 t
h

e
 

e
x
e
m

p
ti

o
n

 o
u

tw
e
ig

h
s
 t

h
e
 

p
u

b
li

c
 i

n
te

re
s
t 

in
 d

is
c
lo

s
in

g
 

th
e
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

R
e
s
o

lv
e
d

:
th

a
t

1
)

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 b

e
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
fo

r 
th

e
p
h
a
s
e
d
 

w
it
h
d
ra

w
a
l 
o
f 
fu

n
d
in

g
 o

f 
F

re
e
 H

o
m

e
 t
o
 S

c
h
o
o
l 

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 v
ia

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
ils

 

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 i
n
s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

ti
m

e
 t
o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 

s
u
c
h
 c

h
a
n
g

e
s
 i
n
 

C
a
rd

if
f’
s
 H

o
m

e
 t
o
 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 
P

o
lic

y
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

a
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r 

c
o
m

m
e
n
c
in

g
 i
n
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
. 

N
e
w

 p
o
lic

ie
s
 

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

ti
n
g
 t

h
o
s
e
 

c
h
a
n
g

e
s
 w

ill
 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

b
e
 

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
ils

 w
e
b
 s

it
e
 

a
n
d
 m

a
d
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 
to

 t
h
e
 p

u
b
lic

 b
y
 1

 
O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
 t
o
 

e
n
a
b
le

 c
h
a
n
g

e
s
 a

re
 

to
 b

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 

fo
r 

th
e
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 

y
e
a
r 

c
o
m

m
e
n
c
in

g
 i
n
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
6
.

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 

b
u
d
g

e
t 

is
 u

n
d
e
r 

e
x
tr

e
m

e
 p

re
s
s
u
re

s
 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 l
o
s
s
 o

f 
fu

n
d
in

g
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

1
9
.0

3
.2

0
1
5

2
3
.0

3
.1

5
2
.0

4
.2

0
1
5

A
n
d
re

w
 

G
re

g
o
ry

P
ag

e 
1

6
o

f 
2

3

Page 24



C
IT

Y
 O

F
 C

A
R

D
IF

F
  

C
O

U
N

C
IL

R
E

G
IS

T
E

R
 O

F
 C

A
B

IN
E

T
D

E
C

IS
IO

N
S

 :
  

1
0

2
0
1
4
/1

5

D
e
c
is

io
n

 
N

o
.

M
in

u
te

 N
o

D
e
c
is

io
n

R
e
a
s
o

n
s

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 
U

n
d

e
rt

a
k

e
n

D
a
te

s
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 f

o
r 

im
p

le
m

e
n

-
ta

ti
o

n
 a

ft
e
r 

d
a
te

 s
h

o
w

n

D
e
c
is

io
n

M
a
d

e
P

u
b

li
c
a
ti

o
n

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

if
  
n

o
 c

a
ll

-i
n

P
a
s
s
p
o
rt

 t
o
 T

ra
v
e
l 

S
c
h
e
m

e
 f
o
r 

p
o
s
t 
1
6
 

p
u
p
ils

/s
tu

d
e
n
ts

 a
g

e
d
 1

6
-

1
9
 w

it
h
 e

ff
e
c
t 
fr

o
m

 t
h
e
 

2
0
1
6
/2

0
1
7
 A

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 

Y
e
a
r.

 F
u
n
d
in

g
 w

o
u
ld

 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

p
u
p
ils

 w
h
o
 

s
ta

rt
e
d
 6

th
 F

o
rm

 o
r 

c
o
lle

g
e
 

c
o
u
rs

e
s
 p

ri
o
r 

to
 t

h
e
 

2
0
1
6
/2

0
1
7
 A

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 Y

e
a
r 

p
ro

v
id

in
g

 t
h
e
y
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 

q
u
a
lif

y
 f

o
r 

th
e
 f
u
ll 

E
M

A
 

a
llo

w
a
n
c
e
, 

u
n
ti
l 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r 

th
a
t 

th
e
y
 t

u
rn

 1
9
;

2
)

it
 b

e
 n

o
te

d
 t
h
a
t
fu

rt
h
e
r 

in
v
e
s
ti
g

a
ti
o
n
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 

in
te

n
d
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 

a
lo

n
g

s
id

e
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 i
n
te

n
ti
o
n
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 
P

la
n
n
in

g
 H

ig
h
w

a
y
s
 T

ra
ff

ic
 

&
 T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

a
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 r

e
tu

rn
 

to
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
w

it
h
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

re
p
o
rt

 s
e
tt

in
g

 o
u
t 
th

e
 

fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 

re
s
u
lt
s
 o

f 
th

o
s
e
 

th
e
 C

P
T

S
 m

e
a
n
s
 

th
a
t 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 

to
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

w
it
h
d
ra

w
in

g
 i
t 

in
 

o
rd

e
r 

to
 p

ro
te

c
t 
o
th

e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

  

1
.

It
 

is
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 
th

a
t 

th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

p
h
a
s
e
d
 w

it
h
d
ra

w
a

l 
o
f 

fu
n
d
in

g
 

o
f 

F
re

e
 

H
o
m

e
 

to
 

S
c
h
o
o
l 

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 
v
ia

 
th

e
 

C
o
u
n
c
ils

 P
a
s
s
p
o
rt

 t
o
 

T
ra

v
e
l 

S
c
h
e
m

e
 

fo
r 

p
o
s
t 

1
6
 

p
u
p
ils

/s
tu

d
e
n
ts

 
a
g

e
d
 

1
6
-1

9
 

w
it
h
 

e
ff

e
c
t 

fr
o
m

 
th

e
 

2
0
1
6
/2

0
1
7
 

A
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 

Y
e
a
r.

 
F

u
n
d
in

g
 

w
o
u
ld

 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 

fo
r 

a
ll 

p
u
p
ils

/s
tu

d
e
n
ts

 
w

h
o
 

s
ta

rt
e
d
 

6
th

 
F

o
rm

 
o
r 

c
o
lle

g
e
 c

o
u
rs

e
s
 p

ri
o
r 

to
 

th
e
 

2
0
1
6
/2

0
1
7
 

A
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 

Y
e
a
r,

 
p
ro

v
id

in
g

 
th

e
y
 

P
ag

e 
1

7
o

f 
2

3

Page 25



C
IT

Y
 O

F
 C

A
R

D
IF

F
  

C
O

U
N

C
IL

R
E

G
IS

T
E

R
 O

F
 C

A
B

IN
E

T
D

E
C

IS
IO

N
S

 :
  

1
0

2
0
1
4
/1

5

D
e
c
is

io
n

 
N

o
.

M
in

u
te

 N
o

D
e
c
is

io
n

R
e
a
s
o

n
s

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 
U

n
d

e
rt

a
k

e
n

D
a
te

s
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 f

o
r 

im
p

le
m

e
n

-
ta

ti
o

n
 a

ft
e
r 

d
a
te

 s
h

o
w

n

D
e
c
is

io
n

M
a
d

e
P

u
b

li
c
a
ti

o
n

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

if
  
n

o
 c

a
ll

-i
n

in
v
e
s
ti
g

a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 e

n
a
b
le

 
th

e
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
to

 m
a
k
e
 a

 
d
e
c
is

io
n
 a

s
 t

o
 t
h
e
 

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 w

h
ic

h
 i
t 

w
is

h
e
s
 

to
 a

d
o
p
t 
to

 a
d
d
re

s
s
 t

h
e
 

fu
tu

re
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 g

a
p
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

C
a
rd

if
f 

P
a
s
s
p
o
rt

 t
o
 T

ra
v
e
l 

S
c
h
e
m

e
. 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 

to
 

q
u
a
lif

y
 

fo
r 

th
e
 

fu
ll 

E
M

A
 

a
llo

w
a
n
c
e
, 

u
n
ti
l 

th
e
 

e
n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 

y
e
a
r 

th
a
t 

th
e
y
 

tu
rn

 
1
9
.

It
 i
s
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 t
h
a
t 

a
lo

n
g

s
id

e
 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
, 
o
ff

ic
e
rs

 
w

ill
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

in
v
e
s
ti
g

a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 

s
tr

e
a
m

s
/m

e
c
h
a
n
is

m
s
 w

h
ic

h
 m

a
y
 b

e
 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 

p
ro

v
id

in
g

 f
re

e
 o

r 
s
u
b
s
id

is
e
d
 t

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 
fo

r 
th

is
 g

ro
u
p
 o

f 
P

o
s
t 

1
6
 p

u
p
ils

/s
tu

d
e
n
ts

 
(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 

P
o
s
t 

1
6
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

G
ro

u
p
).

  
W

h
e
n
 t
h
is

 
m

a
tt
e
r 

is
 b

ro
u
g

h
t 

b
a
c
k
 b

e
fo

re
 C

a
b
in

e
t 

to
 m

a
k
e
 a

 
d
e
te

rm
in

a
ti
o
n
 a

s
 t

o
 

w
h
e
th

e
r 

to
 w

it
h
d
ra

w
 

P
ag

e 
1

8
o

f 
2

3

Page 26



C
IT

Y
 O

F
 C

A
R

D
IF

F
  

C
O

U
N

C
IL

R
E

G
IS

T
E

R
 O

F
 C

A
B

IN
E

T
D

E
C

IS
IO

N
S

 :
  

1
0

2
0
1
4
/1

5

D
e
c
is

io
n

 
N

o
.

M
in

u
te

 N
o

D
e
c
is

io
n

R
e
a
s
o

n
s

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 
U

n
d

e
rt

a
k

e
n

D
a
te

s
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 f

o
r 

im
p

le
m

e
n

-
ta

ti
o

n
 a

ft
e
r 

d
a
te

 s
h

o
w

n

D
e
c
is

io
n

M
a
d

e
P

u
b

li
c
a
ti

o
n

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

if
  
n

o
 c

a
ll

-i
n

th
e
 P

a
s
s
p
o
rt

 t
o
 

T
ra

v
e
l 
S

c
h
e
m

e
 

(e
it
h
e
r 

a
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 

b
e
in

g
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 o

r 
a
s
 m

a
y
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

a
m

e
n
d
e
d
) 

it
 w

ill
 b

e
 

th
e
 i
n
te

n
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

re
p
o
rt

 t
o
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
o
n
 

th
e
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 f
ro

m
 

th
e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

th
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

o
s
e
 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

in
v
e
s
ti
g

a
ti
o
n
s
 

a
n
d
 d

is
c
u
s
s
io

n
s
. 

C
A

B
/1

4
/

1
1
0

M
in

 N
o
 

1
4
2

C
a
rd

if
f 

C
o

u
n

c
il
 D

e
s
ig

n
a
ti

o
n

 
a
s
 S

in
g

le
 L

ic
e
n

s
in

g
 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 f
o

r 
P

o
w

e
rs

 
C

o
n

ta
in

e
d

 i
n

 P
a
rt

 1
 o

f 
th

e
 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 (

W
a
le

s
) 

A
c
t

2
0
1
4

–
W

e
ls

h
 A

g
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 L

a
n

d
lo

rd
 

L
ic

e
n

s
in

g
 S

c
h

e
m

e

R
e
s
o

lv
e
d

: 
th

a
t

1
.

th
e
 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 (

W
a
le

s
) 

A
c
t 

2
0
1
4
 

(“
th

e
 2

0
1
4
 A

c
t”

) 
a
s
 s

e
t 
o
u
t 

in
 t

h
e

re
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
to

 d
e
s
ig

n
a
te

 T
h
e
 

L
e
g

is
la

ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 n

o
w

 
b
e
e
n
 e

n
a
c
te

d
 a

n
d
 

C
a
rd

if
f 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 f

o
rm

a
lly

 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g

 
it
’s

 d
e
s
ig

n
a
ti
o
n
 a

s
 

th
e
 S

in
g

le
 L

ic
e
n
s
in

g
 

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

 f
o
r 

L
ic

e
n
s
in

g
 A

g
e
n
ts

 
a
n
d
 L

a
n
d
lo

rd
s
 i
n
 

W
a
le

s
. 
T

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 
s
e
e
k
s
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
a
n
d
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

th
is

 d
e
s
ig

n
a
ti
o
n
. 

T
h
is

 w
ill

 i
n

v
o
lv

e
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 &

 
A

d
u
lt
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t
h
is

 
re

p
o
rt

 o
n
 t

h
e
 4

 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
5
.

O
v
e
ra

ll,
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

 
a
re

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

iv
e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
th

a
t 

C
a
rd

if
f 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

b
e
c
o
m

e
s
 t

h
e
 

S
in

g
le

 L
ic

e
n
s
in

g
 

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
n
d
 

a
p
p
re

c
ia

te
 t
h
e
 

1
9
.0

3
.2

0
1
5

2
3
.0

3
.1

5
2
.0

4
.2

0
1
5

J
a
n
e
 

F
o
rs

h
a
w

P
ag

e 
1

9
o

f 
2

3

Page 27



C
IT

Y
 O

F
 C

A
R

D
IF

F
  

C
O

U
N

C
IL

R
E

G
IS

T
E

R
 O

F
 C

A
B

IN
E

T
D

E
C

IS
IO

N
S

 :
  

1
0

2
0
1
4
/1

5

D
e
c
is

io
n

 
N

o
.

M
in

u
te

 N
o

D
e
c
is

io
n

R
e
a
s
o

n
s

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 
U

n
d

e
rt

a
k

e
n

D
a
te

s
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 f

o
r 

im
p

le
m

e
n

-
ta

ti
o

n
 a

ft
e
r 

d
a
te

 s
h

o
w

n

D
e
c
is

io
n

M
a
d

e
P

u
b

li
c
a
ti

o
n

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

if
  
n

o
 c

a
ll

-i
n

C
o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

o
f 

th
e
 C

it
y
 

a
n
d
 C

o
u
n
ty

 o
f 

C
a
rd

if
f 

a
s
 

th
e
 
S

in
g

le
 L

ic
e
n
s
in

g
 

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

 f
o
r 

th
e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
 

o
f 

P
a
rt

 1
 o

f 
th

e
 2

0
1
4
 A

c
t 

b
e
 n

o
te

d

2
.

it
 b

e
 a

g
re

e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

c
a
rr

y
o
u
t

th
e
 

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
in

 
p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
 6

 o
f 
th

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

, 
to

 e
n
a
b
le

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

to
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 i
ts

d
e
s
ig

n
a
te

d
 

ro
le

 a
s
 t
h
e

S
in

g
le

 
L
ic

e
n
s
in

g
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

; 
a
n
d

3
.

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 b
e
 d

e
le

g
a
te

d
 t

o
th

e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
w

it
h
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o
r 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,

 i
n
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
, 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 
S

o
lic

it
o
r 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 C

a
b
in

e
t 

M
e
m

b
e
r 

(E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t)

, 
to

 
n
e
g

o
ti
a
te

a
n
d
 c

o
n
c
lu

d
e
 a

 
M

e
m

o
ra

n
d
u
m

 o
f 

U
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 w

it
h
 a

ll 
W

e
ls

h
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 

C
a
rd

if
f 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g

 t
h
e
 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 a

c
ro

s
s
 2

2
 

lo
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
re

a
s
 

in
 W

a
le

s
.

n
e
e
d
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 

th
e
 p

ri
v
a
te

 r
e
n
te

d
 

s
e
c
to

r.
 T

h
e
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 f
e
lt
 i
s
 

w
a
s
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 
th

a
t 

C
a
rd

if
f 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

re
c
e
iv

e
d
 

c
o
n
fi
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 

W
e
ls

h
 

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 
p
ri
o
r 

to
 C

a
b
in

e
t 

m
a
k
in

g
 a

 d
e
c
is

io
n
 

o
n
 t

h
e
 m

a
tt

e
r.

  
 

P
ag

e 
2

0
o

f 
2

3

Page 28



C
IT

Y
 O

F
 C

A
R

D
IF

F
  

C
O

U
N

C
IL

R
E

G
IS

T
E

R
 O

F
 C

A
B

IN
E

T
D

E
C

IS
IO

N
S

 :
  

1
0

2
0
1
4
/1

5

D
e
c
is

io
n

 
N

o
.

M
in

u
te

 N
o

D
e
c
is

io
n

R
e
a
s
o

n
s

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 
U

n
d

e
rt

a
k

e
n

D
a
te

s
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 f

o
r 

im
p

le
m

e
n

-
ta

ti
o

n
 a

ft
e
r 

d
a
te

 s
h

o
w

n

D
e
c
is

io
n

M
a
d

e
P

u
b

li
c
a
ti

o
n

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

if
  
n

o
 c

a
ll

-i
n

a
n
d
 t

o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 t
h
o
s
e
 

m
a
tt
e
rs

 s
e
t 

o
u
t

in
 

p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
s
 6

 a
n
d
 

1
6

o
f

th
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

. 

4
.

th
e
 M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 O

ff
ic

e
r

b
e
 

re
q

u
e
s
te

d
to

 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
 

to
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
y
 

c
o
n
s
e
q

u
e
n
ti
a
l 
to

 t
h
e
 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

S
c
h
e
m

e
 o

f 
D

e
le

g
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

M
in

 N
o
 

1
4
3

H
o

m
e
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
L

o
a
n

s

R
e
s
o

lv
e
d

: 
th

a
t

1
.

C
o
u
n
c
il

b
e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 

to
a
p
p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
 

a
m

e
n
d
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 t

h
e
 

re
v
is

e
d
 P

ri
v
a
te

 S
e
c
to

r 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 P

o
lic

y
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

th
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 s
e
t 

o
u
t 

in
 

th
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

H
o
m

e
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
L
o
a
n
s
 

to
 e

ld
e
rl
y
 o

w
n
e
r 

o
c
c
u
p
ie

rs
 

a
n
d
 H

o
u
s
e
s
 i
n
to

 H
o
m

e
s
 

L
o
a
n
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 p

ri
v
a
te

 r
e
n
te

d
 

s
e
c
to

r 
to

 b
ri
n
g
 e

m
p
ty

 

T
o
 a

g
re

e
 

a
m

e
n
d
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 t

h
e
 

P
ri
v
a
te

 S
e
c
to

r 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 P

o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 

to
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
 n

e
w

 
a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

p
ri
v
a
te

 s
e
c
to

r 
H

o
m

e
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
L
o
a
n
s
 

m
a
k
in

g
 u

s
e
 o

f 
W

e
ls

h
 

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

re
p
a
y
a
b
le

 f
u
n
d
in

g
. 

T
h
e
s
e
 m

a
tt

e
rs

 a
re

 t
o
 b

e
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d
 b

y
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 a

re
 n

o
t,
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

, 
s
u
b
je

c
t 
to

 
c
a
ll-

in

P
ag

e 
2

1
o

f 
2

3

Page 29



C
IT

Y
 O

F
 C

A
R

D
IF

F
  

C
O

U
N

C
IL

R
E

G
IS

T
E

R
 O

F
 C

A
B

IN
E

T
D

E
C

IS
IO

N
S

 :
  

1
0

2
0
1
4
/1

5

D
e
c
is

io
n

 
N

o
.

M
in

u
te

 N
o

D
e
c
is

io
n

R
e
a
s
o

n
s

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 
U

n
d

e
rt

a
k

e
n

D
a
te

s
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 f

o
r 

im
p

le
m

e
n

-
ta

ti
o

n
 a

ft
e
r 

d
a
te

 s
h

o
w

n

D
e
c
is

io
n

M
a
d

e
P

u
b

li
c
a
ti

o
n

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

if
  
n

o
 c

a
ll

-i
n

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 b

a
c
k
 i
n
to

 u
s
e
.

2
.

C
o
u
n
c
il 

b
e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 

to
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
W

e
ls

h
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

re
p
a
y
a
b
le

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 

th
e
 c

o
s
ts

 o
f 

th
e
s
e
 l
o
a
n
s

3
.

C
o
u
n
c
il

b
e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 

to
 a

g
re

e
 t
h
a
t 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 b
e
 

d
e
le

g
a
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 

a
n
d
 C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 t

o
 

p
u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
 t

h
e
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 r
e
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 

th
e
 H

o
m

e
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

L
o
a
n
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 t

o
 

m
a
k
e
 m

in
o
r 

c
h
a
n
g

e
s
 t

o
 

th
e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s

a
s
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 
to

 t
h
e
ir
 e

n
s
u
re

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 

o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
. 

M
in

 N
o
 

1
4
4

F
a
ir

w
a
te

r 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 P

o
ll

R
e
s
o

lv
e
d

: 
th

a
t 

1
.

th
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 o

f 
th

e
 F

a
ir
w

a
te

r 

T
o
 e

n
a
b
le

 t
h
e
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 

to
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

w
h
a
t 

a
c
ti
o
n
 t

h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

s
h
o
u
ld

 t
a
k
e
 

in
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

F
a
ir
w

a
te

r 

T
h
e
s
e
 m

a
tt

e
rs

 a
re

 t
o
 b

e
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d
 b

y
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 a

re
 n

o
t,
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

, 
s
u
b
je

c
t 
to

 
c
a
ll-

in

P
ag

e 
2

2
o

f 
2

3

Page 30



C
IT

Y
 O

F
 C

A
R

D
IF

F
  

C
O

U
N

C
IL

R
E

G
IS

T
E

R
 O

F
 C

A
B

IN
E

T
D

E
C

IS
IO

N
S

 :
  

1
0

2
0
1
4
/1

5

D
e
c
is

io
n

 
N

o
.

M
in

u
te

 N
o

D
e
c
is

io
n

R
e
a
s
o

n
s

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 
U

n
d

e
rt

a
k

e
n

D
a
te

s
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 f

o
r 

im
p

le
m

e
n

-
ta

ti
o

n
 a

ft
e
r 

d
a
te

 s
h

o
w

n

D
e
c
is

io
n

M
a
d

e
P

u
b

li
c
a
ti

o
n

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

if
  
n

o
 c

a
ll

-i
n

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 P

o
ll 

h
e
ld

 o
n
 5

th

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
5
 (

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 A
 

to
 t
h
e

re
p
o
rt

)
b
e
 n

o
te

d
;

a
n
d

2
.

th
e
 m

a
tt
e
r 

b
e
 r

e
fe

rr
e
d
 t

o
 

fu
ll 

C
o
u
n
c
il,

 w
it
h
 a

 
re

c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 t

h
a
t 

n
o
 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

a
c
ti
o
n
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

ta
k
e
n
 i
n
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t

o
 t

h
a
t 

P
o
ll.

 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 P

o
ll 

h
e
ld

 
o
n
 5

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
5
.

P
re

p
a
re

d
 b

y
 C

a
b

in
e
t 

O
ff

ic
e
: 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
2
3

M
a
rc

h
2
0
1
5

S
u

b
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 C

h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
 f

o
r 

s
ig

n
a
tu

re
: 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
3
 M

a
rc

h
2
0
1
5

A
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 f

o
r 

P
u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n

…
.
P

a
u
l 
O

rd
e
rs

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
..
  
 

D
a
te

…
2
3
/0

3
/2

0
1
5
…

…
…

…
..
…

…
…

…
.

C
h

ie
f 

E
x

ec
u

ti
v

e

P
ag

e 
2

3
o

f 
2

3

Page 31



Page 32

This page is intentionally left blank



CITY OF CARDIFF COUNCIL
CYNGOR DINAS CAERDYDD

CABINET MEETING: 19 MARCH 2015

GLAMORGAN COUNTY CRICKET CLUB LOAN WRITE-OFF AND 
RESTRUCTURING

REPORT OF CORPORATE DIRECTOR RESOURCES
AGENDA ITEM:9

PORTFOLIO: CORPORATE SERVICES AND PERFORMANCE
(COUNCILLOR GRAHAM HINCHEY)

Appendix 1 and 2 to this Report are not for publication as they contain 
exempt information of the Description in Paragraphs 14 and 21 of

Schedule 12a to the Local Government Act 1972

Reason for this Report

1. The purpose of the report is to consider a proposal from Glamorgan 
County Cricket Club (GCCC) for a write-off and restructuring of sums due 
to the Council in respect of loans provided to improve the Club’s ground 
infrastructure and to meet standards required for the staging of test 
matches.

Background

2. GCCC was formed in 1888 and has been the sole Welsh first class 
cricket club since 1921. It is one of Cardiff’s longest established 
professional sports teams and has historically been the focal point for 
cricket in Wales as a whole.

3. Similar to other cricket clubs, an opportunity to attract international 
matches led to significant investment in the facilities of the GCCC.
Following its award of test match status GCCC successfully hosted the 
Ashes test with Australia in 2009, has hosted a number of other 
successful matches since and will host a further Ashes Test this year.

4. At its meeting on the 14 November 2006 the Executive resolved to 
provide a £4 million loan towards the stadium development, taking full 
account of the economic wellbeing benefits associated with the GCCC’s 
proposal to extend its ground infrastructure and enable the staging of test 
matches. Changes to criteria set by the England and Wales Cricket 
Board (ECB) for test match grounds resulted in the cost of the stadium 
infrastructure being higher, costs which were met by the club Chairman 
at the time, a bank overdraft and use of accelerated naming rights. This 
resulted in cash flow issues for the Club and in response it requested the 
Council to defer existing loan payments. At its meeting on 17 February 

Page 1 of 8

Page 33



2011 the Executive agreed to defer existing loan repayments as well as 
provide an additional loan of £1.056 million towards the cost of the 
additional works required.

5. The implications to both these Council reports stressed that there was no 
conventional security for the requested funding. The Council had a 
second mortgage behind the bank and recognised that the Club’s ability 
to repay that facility was based on its projected cash flow arising from the 
estimated costs of the necessary ground improvements and projected 
income taking account of the reasonable chances of the ground being 
nominated for future test and other international matches.

6. At 31 December 2014, the Club owed circa £16 million principal and 
interest accrued in relation to funding secured to redevelop the ground 
which is broken down as follows:

£m

Allied Irish Bank (AIB) 7.2

Cardiff Council 6.4

Mr Russell (Clubs Chairman at the time) 2.4

Total due to main creditors 16.0

7. The loans to Allied Irish Bank (AIB) are secured by way of a first ranking 
debenture, so that in the event of any insolvency, it is entitled to be 
repaid in full before the Council and Mr Russell. The Council has a 
second charge and Mr Russell the third charge.

8. The debt has proven difficult to service both as a result of the changing 
economic climate from that which was in place when the infrastructure 
was built and also the Club’s performance against its business plan 
projections. A capital and interest holiday was agreed in 2012 and is 
shortly due to expire. GCCC have proposed to all creditors a further 
restructuring of debt.  This requires each of the lenders to write-off circa 
70% of sums due, which including interest totals £11.2 million and results 
in a remaining debt of circa 30% which amounts to £4.8 million. A further 
deferral of any remaining sums payable and the early release of Mr 
Russell for a discounted payment has also been requested by GCCC.

9. Both the Bank and Mr Russell have agreed to the proposal. The Bank 
has advised that their approved write down is a maximum of £5 million 
and/or 70% of the debt, including accrued interest. However this is 
subject to the same decision also being reached by the Council. The 
proposed Heads of Terms of the revised loan agreement are included at 
Appendix 1 and Deloitte’s have been engaged to provide independent 
financial advice to the Council on the proposal. This advice is attached at 
Appendix 2.

Financial Position of the Club

10. In accordance with the terms of the Council loan, the Council periodically 
receives and interprets financial performance and financial forecast 

Page 2 of 8

Page 34



information received from the Club. Discussions also take place with the 
Club and the AIB on such issues.

11. For some time it has been clear that the Club’s ability to service the 
extent of debt held is limited. In accordance with accounting 
requirements, a view was taken in preparing the 2013/14 Statement of 
Accounts for the Council that there was little likelihood that the loan 
principal shown as outstanding on the balance sheet was recoverable. 
The loan was impaired to nil and a similar approach taken by the Bank.
The impairment was shown as an exceptional item in the Council’s
audited statement of accounts for 2013/14 which were taken to Council in 
September 2014 post audit. Evidence for impairment included:-

The Club had requested that the Council and its other creditors 
take part in a further restructuring of its obligations with a view to 
further deferral of sums due to avoid breach of contract.

The Club’s published annual report for 2013, following a 
management restructure, indicated further discussions on loans 
outstanding to take place with the Club’s creditors. 

The financial environment in which the Club operated was 
identified as challenging and that this was likely to be the case for 
the foreseeable future

The Club has consistently made financial losses in recent years.

The Club would need a significant turnaround in its financial 
position in order to be able to generate surplus cash to enable 
some payment of outstanding loans and interest obligations.

Following meetings between Council officers and the GCCC, there 
seems little prospect that the existing loan agreement in its current 
form can be adhered to for the foreseeable future. 

The Council does not have an enforceable security over the Club’s 
property and the bank has first priority for repayment. Given that 
AIB has first deed of priority for payment there is little likelihood of 
the Council receiving value from any organisational restructure at 
the Club given any potential residual valuation of assets

Repayments are dependent on success in attracting international 
matches. With increasing competition amongst grounds to host 
exclusive matches, performance is totally reliant here on the ECB 
granting significant future International Matches and the Club 
hosting them successfully

The Club has been reliant on short term loans from the ECB, the 
use of cash from future ticket sales as well as one off windfalls to 
balance the cash position in the short term. 

The England and Wales cricket sector (18 First Class Counties) 
has incurred a consolidated loss averaging £10 million per annum
for the last 3 years (2011 –2013), against a consolidated debt level 
of £200 million.

There has been rapid growth in the costs of funding domestic first 
class county cricket, with no corresponding increase in related 
income.

Page 3 of 8

Page 35



12. Independent analysis of the Club’s business plan and financial forecasts 
by Deloitte as attached at Appendix 2 re-inforce the above evidence and 
indicate that:-

The underlying business makes losses each year excluding the 
impact of assumptions in relation to Welsh Government grant, 
major matches and bonus payments from the ECB

Revenues continue to be dependant on major match awards and 
sponsorship

The Club has a challenging financial outlook, with potential for 
significant downside, resulting in significant recoverability risk for 
the remaining balance.

The difficulty in making challenging savings assumptions made 
whilst balancing the need to remain competitive in the County 
game.

The Club balance sheet was a net liability and a write off is 
required to return the clubs balance sheet to a net assets position

The Club is using income from future received from future 
matches to sustain current operating activity

Additional loans from private investors, the England and Wales 
Cricket Board or other sources may be required in order to secure 
a major cash injection to meet cash flows

Whilst there are upside risks, sensitivities are identified that could 
have a further negative impact on the clubs cash flow forecast and 
ability to generate income to service debt

Independent Financial Advice

13. Deloitte’s independent financial advice having made the above points in 
determining the Council’s proposed course of action is as follows:-

The Club has significant risk of administration if consensual 
restructuring is not agreed.

The analysis indicates that the Club require a debt write down of at 
least 70%. This is the minimum required, for the Club to have any 
chance of servicing remaining debt

AIB’s agreement to the proposal that all creditors write down their 
debt by a maximum of £5 million, circa 70% is a generous deal for 
Council and Mr Russell. In such situations, lower ranked creditors 
would be asked to write down in full.

Further restructuring of debt is likely to be required at a later date

If there is no risk in derailing the process, the Council may want to 
seek amendment to the proposal should there be outperformance/
windfall.

Position of the Club’s other Partners

14. The Club’s previous chairman Mr Russell, has accepted the need for a 
write down and has accepted the offer of an immediate payment to cease 
involvement in the Club. This payment is a write-down of circa 70% with

Page 4 of 8

Page 36



a further reduction of circa £100,000 in return for immediate repayment of 
the remaining sum.

15. AIB have formally ratified and put into effect a circa 70% write down with 
effect from 31 December 2014, with option to reverse if other creditors do 
not follow. AIB have also agreed to release Mr Russell from his 
guarantee to the Bank, should he accept full and final settlement as a 
creditor of the Club.

16. The ECB have announced the major match awards for 2017 –2019, 
including a condition that financial stability must be achieved (i.e. a 
financial restructuring completed) before confirmation of the award. They 
have also provided various loan and cash flow facilities to help the Club 
to navigate through until 2017 –2019 (with discussions still ongoing). 
ECB have agreed to provide loan funding to meet the lump sum payment 
release for Mr Russell.

17. The Welsh Government is considering a request for grant funding which 
is also conditional upon securing a financial restructuring. The exact level 
of this support has not yet been confirmed.

18. A range of private investors have provided an indication of financial 
support to assist with cash flow until 2018. This support is also 
conditional upon completion of a financial restructuring with existing 
creditors.

Heads of terms for revised loan

19. The full proposed heads of terms are attached at Appendix 1 and allow 
for:-

Outstanding debt and interest to be written down by circa 70% based 
upon cumulative balances at 31 March 2015 to form a revised 
consolidated loan.  Repayment of remaining balance (combined 
balance - £1,923,584 – 31 March 2015) to be rescheduled as follows:

a. Equal 6 monthly instalments of 1/40 of revised loan balance to be 
paid starting on 1 July 2019. 

b. Remaining principal balance to be repaid in its entirety on 1 
January 2026, subject to securing funding to repay

Interest to continue to accrue on revised consolidated loan at 1.5% 
plus LIBOR (3mth rate), subject to a 3% cap.  All interest to be paid 
quarterly in arrears, commencing 1 July 2015.

Payments of capital and interest to rank pari-passu with AIB and 
ECB, with the exception of ECB's preference on excess ECB 
payments

No event of default apart from insolvency and cross default.

Page 5 of 8

Page 37



GCCC to be given permission to borrow additional funds from 
investors as described below.

With exception of new security for investors, all security and rankings 
between creditors to remain as currently in place.   Any security 
linked to further borrowing to rank behind AIB and CCC.

20. It should also be noted that the parties will not proceed with the 
restructuring until there is confirmation from the HMRC that there are no 
adverse tax implications.

21. In addition the Council and AIB have requested that the Club update the 
proposed heads of terms of the revised loan to reflect the position if there 
should be any windfall/outperformance in relation to the Club’s 
projections. The Club have advised of their willingness to accept such an 
amendment and have included suggested drafting in the attached 
appendix which will be considered by the parties prior to  completing the 
revised contractual terms in relation to the loans."

Reasons for Recommendations

22. The implications of not accepting the proposal are the likely insolvency of 
the Club or a change in legal status which could have significant cost 
implications for the Club, reputational impact, loss of test or other major 
match status including impact on existing match awards.

23. Independent financial advice indicates the existing level of debt of the 
Club is un-servicable and even with a circa 70% write down significant 
financial and operating risks remain.

24. The first creditor has agreed to the terms of the restructuring, subject to 
the Council also doing so, which gives assurance the Council is acting in 
accordance with the Market Investor Principle.

25. The proposal in partnership with AIB is a generous one as in similar 
situations, lower ranking creditors would normally be required to write-off 
their outstanding amounts in full. The Council will retain opportunities to 
recoup some of the loan amount in future years in accordance with 
revised loan agreements or should there be a reversal in the Club’s 
financial position. The Council also continues to discuss opportunities to 
access other benefits from the Club for example the use of rooms at the 
stadium where relevant.

Financial Implications

26. GCCC have requested that the existing sums due to the Council of circa 
£6.2m are written off by circa 70%, consistent with the approach that AIB 
and Mr Russell, the Club’s other main creditors have agreed. For the 
remaining balance, the Club have requested a restructuring, spreading 
the loan balance over a twenty year period starting 1 July 2019.

Page 6 of 8

Page 38



27. The risks of non recovery of loan amounts were recognised when the 
loans were given.  In 2013/14, based on evidence available, the Council 
considered that the value recoverable from an accounting perspective 
was nil i.e the loan was fully impaired in the Council’s accounts.

28. The Council subsequently engaged independent financial advice from 
Delloitte, whose report is attached at Appendix 2. Based on an analysis 
of the Club’s financial forecasts, this has highlighted that the Club could 
support only 30% of existing debt and concludes there were more 
potential risks than potential upsides to the Club’s financial forecasts. On 
this basis the Council would continue to recognise impairment at 100%.

29. With the Council having only a second charge, any insolvency scenario 
would mean the Council would likely receive nil. Accordingly the proposal 
put forward does offer an opportunity for some return in the future, in line 
with the first charge holder AIB.

30. It is deemed by the first and second legal charge holders that the early 
release of Mr Russell for a reduced upfront payment will protect the 
ongoing viability of the club and the ability of the creditors to realise a
return on sums due.

31. The loans provided to the Club of £5.056 million were initially charged as 
capital expenditure to be ultimately paid for by borrowing. Since 2012/13, 
the Council has been making an annual prudent provision for the 
repayment of the sums due as part of its Minimum Revenue Provision for 
repayment of debt. Given the risks of non repayment, the Council has 
also been making 100% bad debt provision for any interest due on the 
loans outstanding. This will mean that there will be no impact of the write 
off in the Council’s revenue budget for 2014/15. This position was also 
adopted when the Council’s Budget for 2015/16 was set. Consideration 
would need to be given as to whether any future interest due as part of a 
restructured loan agreement should also be provided for in full.

Legal Implications

32. The body of this report proposes the write off of part of the debt due from 
GCCC to the Council. In terms of potential State Aid, AIB as a market 
investor has agreed to the same percentage write off in regard to its own 
debt. As mentioned in the report, the Council will retain opportunities to 
recoup some of the loan amount in future years as a consequence of the 
revised loan agreements. This is an improvement on the position 
whereby AIB could have called for the Council’s debt to be written off in 
full as a pre-condition to writing off part of its own debt.

RECOMMENDATIONS

The Cabinet is recommended to:

1. In line with the other main creditors, write-off circa 70% of the value of 
sums outstanding on loans made to Glamorgan County Cricket Club.

Page 7 of 8

Page 39



2. Agree the heads of terms and revised terms for repayment of amounts 
outstanding, whilst acknowledging that there can be no absolute 
guarantee that income generated by the Club will enable it to repay the 
proposed restructured loan.

3. Delegate authority to the Corporate Director Resources to complete 
revised contractual terms with the club in consultation with County 
Solicitor and the Cabinet Member for Corporate Services and 
Performance..

CHRISTINE SALTER
Corporate Director
13 March 2015

The following Appendices are attached:

Appendix 1: Draft Loan Restructuring Term Sheet – February 2015 
(Confidential)
Appendix 2: Delloitte report to Cardiff Council - Independent financial review
(confidential)

Page 8 of 8

Page 40



Page 41

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14, 21 of Part(s) 4 and 5 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 47

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14, 21 of Part(s) 4 and 5 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 80

This page is intentionally left blank



        Appendix C 

Scrutiny Committee Member Call In Request 
Confirmation of Electronic Notification

For the attention of the Operational Manager Scrutiny.  

PART A

Councillor... Russell Goodway 
E-mail address...Russell Goodway@cardiff.gov.uk

PART B

As a non-executive member of the Scrutiny Committee, I hereby formally 
request the 'call-in' of decision number CAB/14/105 19 March 2015 on the 
Decision Register.  

This decision (CAB/14/105) proposes to write-off circa 70% of the value 
of sums outstanding on loans made to Glamorgan County Cricket Club 
to improve the Club’s ground infrastructure and to meet standards 
required for the staging of test matches. 

The principal reasons for the call in are: 

1. The apparent failure to consider other options to secure the 
council-taxpayers interest; 

2. The apparent willingness to collaborate in the release of a bank 
guarantee and the repayment of loan capital to a lower ranking 
creditor to the apparent detriment of  council-taxpayers; 

3. The apparent failure to secure changes in the organisation’s 
management to secure improvements in the Club’s financial 
performance; 

4. The on-going financial performance of the Club and its apparent 
inability to pay its debts when they fall due; 

5. The apparent failure to secure appropriate benefits in kind to 
mitigate the loss to the council taxpayer; 

6. The risk to the council’s reputation resulting from the decision to 
enter into the proposed agreement. 

Page 81



I am therefore calling in the decision to: a)consider the merits of the 
decision; b)consider the process by which the decision has been made;
and c)make recommendations (to support the decision, change aspects 
of the decision, or to invite the decision making body to reconsider). 

Signed: ...Cllr Russell Goodway....... 31 March 2015 (12:50)

Page 82


	Agenda
	4 Glamorgan County Cricket Club Loan Write-off and Restructuring.  Consideration of Called-in Cabinet Decision - CAB/14/15
	Appendix A - Register of Cabinet Decisions
	Appendix B - GCCC Cabinet Report 19/03/2015
	Appendix 1 of Appendix B
	Appendix 2 of Appendix B
	Appendix C -GCCC Call In Form


